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About Company

Interactive Financial Services Limited (IFSL) was incorporated in 1994. IFSL is a
Category- | Merchant Banker registered with SEBIIFSL, firmly believes in
establishing high performance standards subject to continuous refinement
which can be measured in terms of client satisfaction.

We are providing services in various areas of capital markets which include
Merchant Banking Services and Corporate Advisory Services. Our promoters
are having more than 2 decades of experience in the capital markets. We are
actively working in SME Listing, Valuation of companies for various transactions,
migration to main board, takeovers and business advisory.

IFSL is listed on India’s largest Stock Exchange BSE Limited. Our Company has
handled 11 SME Public Issue.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PL.C023393

Board of Directors

Name

Mr. Pradip Sandhir
*Mr. Mayur Parikh

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra
**Mr. Monil Shah

Designation

Managing Director

Executive Director

Non- Executive Independent Director
Non- Executive Independent Director
Non- Executive Independent Director

*The Designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh has been changed from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director

of the Company with effect from May 29, 2024.

**Mr. Monil Shah was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director on August

29, 2024.

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Pradip Sandhir
Ms. Jaini Jain

Statutory Auditor
M/s. B.T.Vora & CO.,
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 123652W)
Address: 706, Hemkoot Complex, B/h. LIC
Building, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380009
Tel No.: 079-26580814/40070814
E-mail: btvora@hotmail.com

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited
106 & 107 Dattani Plaza,Kurla Andheri Road,

Kurla (w), Nr Safed Poll East West Ind Estate,

Mumbai — 400072, Mumbai, India

Tel No. 022-28520461/ 022-28520462

Email: service@satellitecorporate.com

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Secretarial Auditor
M/s Insiya Nalawala & Associates
Company Secretaries (COP No. 22786)
Address: 303/B, Mangalmurti Complex, Beside
Shiv Cinema, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 009,
Gujarat, India
Tel No.: +91-9724509467
E-mail id: insiya(@csinsiya.in

Bankers to the company
ICICI Bank Limited

HDFC Bank Limited
Shapath IV Branch, Ahmedabad

Registered Office
Office No. 508, Fifth Floor, Priviera Nehru Nagar,
Ahmedabad — 380 015, Gujarat, India
Tel No.: 079 46019796
Email: compliance@ifinservices.in; Website: www.ifinservices.in;
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*The registered office address of the company has been changed from 612, 6th Floor, Shree Balaji Heights, Kokilaben
Vyas Marg, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad — 380 009, Gujarat, India to Office No. 508, Fifth Floor, Priviera Nehru Nagar,
Ahmedabad — 380 015, Gujarat, India on October 10, 2023.

COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director

Mr. Mayur Parikh Member Executive Director

Mr. Monil Shah Member Additional Director in capacity of

Independent Director

*The Audit Committee of the company was duly reconstituted in the Board meeting held on August 29, 2024 and Mr.
Monil Shah was appointed as a member in the committee.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Chairman Independent Director

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Member Independent Director

*Mr. Monil Shah Member Additional Director in capacity of

Independent Director

*The Nomination and Remuneration committee of the company was duly reconstituted in the Board meeting held on
August 29, 2024 and Mr. Monil Shah was appointed as a member in the committee.

3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship
Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director
Mr. Pradip Sandhir Member Managing Director

*The composition of Board of Directors of the company, various Committees and Key Managerial Personnels of the
company are shown as on the date of this report. For the details of changes in board structure and committee structure
please refer board report which forms part of this report.
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NOTICE OF 30™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30" (Thirtieth) Annual General Meeting of the members of Interactive
Financial Services Limited (CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393) will be held on Saturday, 21% day of
September, 2024 at 01:30 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means
(“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended 31% March, 2024 and the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Mayur Parikh (DIN: 00005646), who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. To appoint Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738) as an Independent Director of the Company for
the first term of five consecutive years

To consider and if, thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision of Section 149, 150, 152, 161 read with Schedule IV, and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and applicable regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company w.e.f. August 29, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the company based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on Wednesday, 14th August, 2024, and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and who also meets the criteria for independence
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with the rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1) of the
Listing Regulations and who have submitted a declaration to that effect and in respect of whom the company
has received a notice in writing form a Member under Section 160 of Act proposing his candidature for the
office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for the first term of Five consecutive years effective from 14th
August, 2024 to 13th August, 2029 on the board of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Board of Directors and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and

are hereby severally authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this Resolution.”
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4. To change the designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh from Non- Executive Director to Executive
Director of the Company and to approve the remuneration payable to him

To consider and if, thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 197 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other provision of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to
the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors
of the company and upon his consent, the approval of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded
to change the designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh (DIN: 00005646) to Executive Director from Non-Executive
Director of the company with effect from 29" May, 2024, whose term of office shall be liable to retire by
rotation, on such remuneration as decided by the Board of Directors of the company from time to time subject
to the compliance of Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Board of Directors and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and
are hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, filling of requisite forms with ROC and shall take all
other steps as may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution.”

5. Approval for raising of funds up to Rs. 12 crores through issuing equity shares by way of rights
issue

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62, Section 23(1)(c) and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, along with the rules made thereunder, each as amended (“Companies
Act”) and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company,
the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as
amended, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, rules, regulations
made thereunder and any other provisions of applicable law, and subject to other approvals, Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the stock exchange where the equity shares of the company (“Equity
Shares”) are listed (the “stock exchange”), the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any other concerned Statutory
or regulatory authorities, if and to the extent necessary, and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions
as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed in
granting of such approvals, permissions and sanctions by any of the aforesaid authorities, t the consent of the
Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to offer, issue and allot Equity Shares of the Company
(the “securities”) by way of a rights issue to the existing shareholders of the Company as on a record date
(“Shareholders”) to be decided at a later date at such price, at a premium or discount to the market price,
considering the prevailing market conditions and such other considerations that the Board may, in its absolute
discretion, decide, such that the aggregate value (including premium) does not exceed Rs. 12 Crores (“Rights
Issue”) or such other sum as may be determined by the Board and on such other terms and conditions as may
be mentioned in the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, and / or Application
Forms, or any other document to be issued by the Company in respect of the Rights issue (collectively referred
to as “Offer Documents”), proposed to be utilized, to acquire the Registered Office of the Company and to
augment the Net worth by deploying part of the proceeds towards investments in Shares, Securities, Mutual
Funds, Bank FD etc., and/or any other purpose that the Board may decide, to list the Equity Shares allotted
pursuant to the Rights Issue, on the Stock Exchange, i.e. BSE Limited and on such other terms and conditions
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as may be mentioned in the Offer Documents, including granting of rights to the eligible shareholders of the
company, to whom the offer is made to renounce the Securities being offered in the rights issue, in favour of
any other person(s), rights to the persons to whom the Securities are being issued to apply for additional
Securities, and to decide, at its discretion, the proportion in which such additional securities shall be allotted.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all securities so offered, issued and allotted by way of the Rights Issue shall
be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares issued shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then
existing Equity Shares of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Jaini Jain, Company Secretary be and is hereby appointed as Compliance
Officer for the purpose of the Rights Issue.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds
and things as may be necessary for the purpose of the rights issue as provided hereunder:

L To appoint and enter into arrangements with the registrar to the issue, ad-agency, monitoring agency,
and all other intermediaries and advisors necessary for the rights issue to enter into and execute all such
arrangements, contracts/agreements, memorandum, documents, etc. in connection therewith;

IL. To negotiate, authorize, approve and pay commission, fees remuneration, expenses and/or any other
charges to the applicable agencies/ persons, and to give them such directions or instructions as it may deem
fit from time to time;

ML To approve and adopt any financial statements prepared for purposes of inclusion in the Offer
Documents, pursuant to the requirements outlined by the SEBI ICDR Regulations or any other applicable law
for time being in force, including intimating the approval and adoption of such financial statements to the
Stock Exchange, if required;

IV.  To negotiate, finalise, settle and execute the registrar agreement, monitoring agency agreement, ad-
agency agreement, banker to the issue agreement, and any other agreement with an intermediary and all other
necessary documents, deeds, agreements, and instruments in relation to the Rights Issue, including but not
limited to any amendments/modifications thereto;

V. To take necessary actions and steps for obtaining relevant approvals from SEBI, the Stock Exchange,
or such other authorities, whether regulatory or otherwise, as may be necessary in relation to the Rights Issue;

VI.  To finalize the Offer Documents and any other documents as may be required and to file the same with
the Stock Exchange, SEBI and other concerned authorities and issue the same to the Shareholders of the
company or any other person in terms of the Offer Documents or any other agreement entered into by the
Company in the ordinary course of business;

VII.  To approve, finalize and issue in such newspapers as it may deem fit and proper all notices, including
any advertisement(s)/supplement(s)/corrigenda required to be issued in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations or
other applicable SEBI guidelines and regulations or in compliance with any direction from SEBI and/ or such
other applicable authorities;
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VIII. To decide in accordance with applicable law, the terms of the Rights Issue, including the nature of the
Securities, the total number, issue price, and other terms and conditions for issuance of the Securities to be
offered in the Rights Issue, and suitably vary the size of the Rights Issue, if required;

IX.  To fix record date(s) for the purpose of the Rights Issue for ascertaining the names of members who
will be entitled to the aforesaid offer of equity shares;

X. To decide the rights entitlement ratio in terms of number of securities which each existing Shareholder
on the record date will be entitled to, in proportion to the Securities held by eligible Shareholder on such date;

XI.  To open bank account(s) to receive applications along with application monies in respect of the issue
of the shares and to make refunds;

XII.  To decide on the marketing strategy of the Rights Issue and the costs involved;

XIII. To decide and determine the final size of the rights issue, the price per share either prior to or after
filing of the Draft Letter of Offer with Stock Exchanges and the rights entitlement ratio for equity shares
including terms of the Rights Issue;

XIV. To file the Letter of Offer with Stock Exchange, ROC and SEBI for information & dissemination
purpose;

XV. To issue and allot the equity shares in one or more tranches and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things necessary or desirable in connection with or incidental to the issue of the equity shares;

XVI. To decide the opening and closing dates for the rights Issue and to extend, vary or alter the same as it
may deem fit at Its absolute discretion or as may be suggested or stipulated by SEBI, stock exchange/s or other
authorities from time to time;

XVII. To finalize the basis of allotments of equity shares in consultation with Registrar and the designated
stock exchange and other stock exchange/s where the existing shares are listed, if necessary;

XVIII. To decide the treatment to be given to the fractional entitlement if any, including rounding upward or
downwards or ignoring such fractional entitlement or issue of fractional coupons and terms and conditions for
consolidation of fractional entitlements into a whole share and application to the Company for the same as
well as to decide the disposal off the shares representing the fractional coupons which are not so consolidated
and presented to the Company for allotment of whole shares or treating fractional entitlement in the manner
as may be approved by SEBI and the stock exchange/s;

XIX. To sign the listing applications, print share certificates, issue ASBA instructions and share certificates;

XX. To file necessary returns, make declarations/announcements, furnish information etc. to the concerned
authorities in connection with the Rights Issue;

XXI. To apply to regulatory authorities seeking their approval for allotment of any unsubscribed portion of
Rights Issue (in favour of the parties willing to subscribe to the same);
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XXII. To decide, at its discretion, the proportion in which the allotment of additional Securities shall be made
in the Rights Issue;

XXIII. To take such actions as may be required in connection with the creation of separate ISIN for the credit
of Right Entitlements in the Rights Issue;

XXIV. To settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in connection with the rights Issue including
the issue and allotment of the equity shares as aforesaid and to do all such acts, deeds and things as the Board
may in its absolute discretion consider necessary, proper, desirable or appropriate for seeking such question,
difficulty or doubt and making the said Rights Issue and allotment of equity shares;

XXV. To decide the mode and manner of allotment of shares if any not subscribed and left/remaining after
allotment of rights shares and additional shares by the shareholders and renounces;

XXVI. To sign and execute any other documents, agreement, undertaking in connection with the Rights Issue;
and

XXVII. To take all such other steps as may be necessary in connection with this Rights Issue.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following person viz.
1. Pradip Sandhir, Managing Director and CFO

2. Mayur Parikh, Director

3. Jaini Jain, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Be and are hereby jointly and severally authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to execute
all such deeds, documents, agreements etc. as may be necessary for the purpose of the proposed Rights Issue
including but not limited to the following:

L To obtain the requisite approvals, consents and sanctions from the Stock Exchanges and any other
regulatory if, require;

1L To file necessary certificates/returns/forms with SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Reserve Bank of India,
Registrar of Companies and other authorities;

ML To apply to the stock exchange for obtaining in-principle approval for listing and for permission to
trade the equity shares and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to sign all such papers, documents
and agreements, as may be necessary to seek the listing of such equity shares on the BSE with the power to
settle any query, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard to the Rights Issue;

IV.  To apply to the concerned depositories for the admission of the equity shares into the depository
system; and
V. To incur necessary expenses such as fees of various agencies, filling fees, stamp duty etc.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT every shareholder who is eligible to apply in the Rights Issue shall have a
right to renounce their Rights Entitlements being offered, in favour of any other person(s). Every Shareholder,
including renouncee(s) shall be entitled to apply for additional Securities and the allotment of the additional
Securities shall be made in the proportion to be decided by the Board in consultation with Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2023-24



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the treatment of fractional entitlements will be finalized and disclosed in
the offer documents.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Jaini Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Pradeep Sandhir,
Managing Director and Mayur Parikh, Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized either severally
or jointly to do all such acts, deeds as may be required for and on behalf of the Company.”

NOTES:

1. Inview of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed
and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13,
2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,
2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from
time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and general
meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence,
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM.
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on
first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020
the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as
venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.ifinservices.in.
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for
providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular
No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, relating to special business under Item No. 3, 4 and 5 to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed
hereto and forms part of the notice.

The relevant details as required under regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India of the Person seeking appointment as Director under Item No. 2 of
the Notice are also annexed.

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors of the Company commend the appointment/re-appointment of the directors
mentioned in this notice.

The cut-off date of sending notice and annual report to the shareholders is 23" August, 2024.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent to those Members whose e-mail address
is registered with the Company/Depositories for communication purpose, unless any Member has
requested for a physical copy of the same. Members may note that this Annual Report will also be
available on the Company’s website at www.ifinservices.in.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for
inspection by the members in electronic mode by requesting through email to the company secretary
at compliance@ifinservices.in.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

The speaker shareholders are required to register themselves with the company by writing e-mail to
the company secretary at compliance@ifinservices.in on or before 20" September, 2024. The speaker
shareholder should note that the questions at the Annual General Meeting are limit to two questions
only due to continuing the further proceeding of the AGM. For any further questions/queries the
shareholder can write to the company at compliance@ifinservices.in.

The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the company will remain close from 15t
September, 2024 to 215 September, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 30th AGM.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on September 18, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. IST and ends on September
20,2024 at 05:00 P.M. IST. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners as on the record
date (cut-off date) i.e. September 14, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company
as on the cut-off date, being September 14, 2024.
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How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities

in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Sharcholders are advised to update their mobile

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type
shareholders
Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL.

1.

of Login Method

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede”
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
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Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
depository
participants

NSDL Mobile App is available on

" AppStore B Google Play

. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user

id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on
New System Myeasi.

. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting

Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click
on NSDL to cast your vote.

. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat

Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging
in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type
Individual

Shareholders

holding

securities in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL Your User ID is:

or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is
[2#FAFFAFRA XA EEE  then your user ID is
12**************

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical EVEN Number followed by Folio Number

Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and
cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) Ifyouremail ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.
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6.

7.

8.

9.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”’(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting(@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast vour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast vour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

2.

W

e

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM?” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail
to Ms. Insiya Nalawala on insiya@csinsiya.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution /
Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter"
displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
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Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com
to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or
call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to NSDL at
evoting(@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to compliance@ifinservices.in.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
compliance@ifinservices.in. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you
are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. Interms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ¢-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:
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1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under
“Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link
placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice
to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
compliance@ifinservices.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Other Instructions:

D

2)

Ms. Insiya Nalawala, Practicing Company Secretary, Proprietor of M/s. Insiya Nalawala & Associates,
Company Secretaries (Membership No. ACS 57573), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize
the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, first
count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote-e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than Two
working days from the conclusion of the meeting a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes
cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman or any of the Director or Company Secretary
of the Company. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the
Company’s website www.ifinservices.in, website of Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com, and on the website of NDSL at www.evoting.nsdl.com, within forty eight hours of
the passing of the resolutions at the 30™ AGM of the Company to be held on Saturday, 21" September,
2024 and communicated to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings)

Item No. 3

To appoint Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738) as an Independent Director of the Company for the first
term of five consecutive years

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738) as an Additional
Independent Director of the Company at its meeting held on Thursday, August 29, 2024 for a period of five
years under section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee given in its meeting held on Wednesday, August 14 , 2024. In terms of Section
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, he holds office only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM’) but he is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director, whose office shall not be liable to
retire by rotation. The Company has in terms of Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, received a notice
in writing from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Monil Shah is an Associate Member of The Institute of Company Secretary of India and LLB and B.com
graduate. He is having more than 5 years of experience in the area of Direct and Indirect Taxation, Corporate
law, Securities Law and Financial Modelling.

Further, Mr. Monil possesses relevant expertise and experience and fulfils the conditions specified in the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and he is independent from the management.

The Company has received the following declaration from Mr. Monil Shah:

i. Consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014

ii. Intimation in form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
to the effect that he is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

iii. Declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in section 149 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1) and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

iv. Declaration pursuant to BSE circular No. LIST/ COMP/14/2018-19 dated June 20, 2018 that he is not been
debarred from holding office of director by virtue of any order passed by Securities and Exchange Board
of India or any other such authority.

Brief resume and other details of Mr. Monil Shah whose appointment is proposed hereby provided in the
annexure to the Explanatory Statement is attached herewith. The Board considers that his continuous
association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail services of
Mr. Monil Shah as an Independent Director. The terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Monil Shah shall
be open for inspection through electronic mode.
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In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr.
Monil Shah as Independent Director is now being placed before the Members for their approval.

Save and except Mr. Monil Shah, none of the other directors / Key Managerial Personnel’s of the Company /
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders as
a Special Resolution.

Item No. 4

To change the Designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh from Non — Executive Director to Executive Director
and to approve the remuneration payvable to him

The Board of directors is of the view to change the designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh (DIN: 00005646) from
Non-Executive Director to Executive Director of the company due to the duties and services offered by him.

Hence based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration committee, the board of directors of
the company in its meeting held on 29" May, 2024, have proposed to change his designation from Non-
Executive Director to Executive Director of the company, whose term of office shall be liable to retire by
rotation.

Mr. Mayur Parikh is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and has three decades
of diverse experience in the area of Public Issue as advisor on behalf of the company, as director of Merchant
Banking Company as well as consultant for the Merchant Banking Companies and has handled Public Issue
of more than 40 companies in the Main Board as well as SME IPO's in both the Stock Exchanges. He has also
contributed in amalgamation, demerger, Takeover and Valuations. Hence, our company being operating in the
field of Merchant Banking Activities will be profited from his appointment as Executive Director of the
company.

The Company has received the following declaration from Mr. Mayur Parikh:

(1) Consent in writing to act as an Executive Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Section 152 (5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014. and

(i1) Intimation in form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act,
2013.

Brief resume and other details of Mr. Mayur Parikh whose appointment is proposed hereby provided in the
annexure to the Explanatory Statement attached herewith. The Board considers that his continued association
would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as an
Executive Director. The terms and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection through
electronic mode.

Save and except Mr. Mayur Parikh, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel’s of the Company
/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Annual Report 2023-2024
19



The Board recommends the Resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders as
a Special Resolution.

Item no. 05

Approval for raising of funds up to Rs. 12 crores through issuing equity shares by way of rights issue

The Board of Directors of Interactive Financial Services Limited (“the Company™), in its meeting held on
Thursday, August 29, 2024, has proposed to raise funds up to Rs. 12 Crores by issuing equity shares on a
rights basis to the existing shareholders of the Company (“Rights Issue”). The Rights Issue is a strategic
decision aimed at strengthening the Company's capital base and enhancing its growth prospects. The Rights
Issue is proposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 62 and Section 23(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013, along with applicable rules made thereunder, and the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”) also govern the procedure for raising capital
through a rights issue for listed companies, such as the Company. The Company will ensure compliance with
all applicable provisions, rules, regulations, and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities, including SEBI,
the stock exchanges where the Company’s equity shares are listed (BSE Limited), and the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

Rights Issue Offer: The Rights Issue will be offered to the existing shareholders of the Company whose
names appear in the register of members as on a record date to be fixed by the Board of Directors. The shares
will be offered in a fixed ratio, based on the proportion of shares held by each shareholder on the record date.
As decided by the Board of Directors. Shareholders will have the right to renounce their entitlements, in full
or in part, in favor of any other person. Additionally, shareholders will be given an option to apply for
additional equity shares over and above their entitlement, and such additional shares will be allotted in a
manner to be decided by the Board, in consultation with the designated stock exchange.

In order to support its long-term growth, the Company has identified a need to strengthen its capital base. The
Board believes that raising equity through a Rights Issue offers the most efficient means to achieve this while
preserving the sharcholders’ proportional ownership. The Rights Issue provides the sharcholders the
opportunity to participate in the Company’s growth while avoiding dilution of their existing shareholding.

The Board of Directors has decided to raise Rs. 12 crores by issuing equity shares on a rights basis has been
made in compliance with the provisions of Section 62 and Section 23(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
proposed Rights Issue is intended to raise funds for the following purposes:

1. To acquire the Registered Office of the Company: The Company is currently operating from leased
premises, which incurs regular rental costs. To reduce this recurring expenditure and establish a stable and
permanent business address, the Company proposes to acquire property to serve as its Registered Office. The
estimated cost for this acquisition is Rs. 3 crores.

2. Investment in Shares, Securities, Mutual Funds, Bank FD, etc.: The Company plans to deploy a portion of
the Rights Issue proceeds, amounting to Rs. 9 Crores into various financial instruments, such as shares,
securities, mutual funds, bank fixed deposits, and other permissible investments. The objective is to augment
the Company’s net worth and generate consistent returns that can be reinvested in the Company’s business
operations. This diversified investment approach aims to optimize the utilization of surplus funds, manage
liquidity risks, and contribute to the long-term financial stability of the Company.
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None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company and/or their relatives have
any financial or other interests in the proposed Rights Issue, except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company. The Rights Issue is being offered to all shareholders, including Directors and KMPs, on a
proportionate basis, and they may participate in the issue in accordance with their entitlements.

All relevant documents pertaining to the said resolution are available for inspection at the Registered Office.
Shareholders may inspect these documents between 11:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday to Friday.

The Board recommends the Resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders as
an Ordinary Resolution.

By order of Board of Directors,
For, Interactive Financial Services Limited

Date: August 29, 2024 Jaini Jain
Place: Ahmedabad Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer

Registered Office

Office No. 508, Fifth Floor,

Priviera Nehru Nagar,

Ahmedabad — 380 015, Gujarat, India.

Corporate Identification Number: L65910GJ1994PL.C023393
Website: www.ifinservices.in

Email id: compliance@jifinservices.in
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 3 & 4 OF THE NOTICE

Information as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting issued by the institute of Company Secretaries
of India with respect to the Appointment / Re-appointment of Directors at the Annual General Meeting is as

under:

Name of the Director
Director Identification Number

Date of Birth
Date of joining the Board
Qualification

Nature of expertise in specific functional areas

No. of Shares held in the Company

Directorship in listed company
(Other than Interactive Financial Services
Limited)

Committee Memberships/
Chairmanship held in Listed Companies (Other
than Interactive Financial Services Limited)

Disclosure of relationships between Directors
inter-se

Mr. Monil Shah Mr. Mayur Parikh

10734738 00005646

27-09-1989 13-11-1959

14-08-2024 01-07-2021

Company Secretary, LLB, Chartered Accountant
B.Com
Corporate Law, Finance, Merchant Banking,
Taxation Finance, Direct and
Indirect Taxes.
17,100

1. Madhav Infra
Projects Limited
2. Bloom Dekor Ltd
3. Amrapali

Industries Limited

0 1. Madhav Infra
Projects Limited
2. Bloom Dekor Ltd
3. Amrapali
Industries Limited
NA NA

For other details such as the number of meetings of the board attended during the year, remuneration drawn
and relationship with other directors and key managerial personnel in respect of above directors, please refer

to the Board Report which is a part of this Annual Report.
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the 30" Board Report of Interactive Financial Services Limited (“the
Company”) together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024 is summarized below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from Operations 306.65 155.77
Other Income 41.03 122.70
Total Income 347.68 278.47
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and 158.89 155.16
Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortization/ Impairment 0.63 0.16
Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 158.26 155
Less: Financial Costs 1.51 1.58
Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 156.75 153.42
Add/(less): Exceptional items 0 0
Profit before Tax Expense 156.75 153.42
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 95.81 33.32
Profit for the year (1) 60.94 120.10
Other Comprehensive Income/loss (2) 305.54 (47.01)
Total (1+2) 366.48 73.09

Revenue from operations Increased to Rs. 306.65 Lakhs as against Rs. 155.77 Lakhs in the previous year
showing a Growth of Rs 150.88 Lakhs. The other income in the current year stands Rs. 41.03 Lakhs as against
Rs. 122.70 Lakhs in the previous year.

The Profit before Tax for the current year is Rs. 156.76 Lakhs as against Rs. 153.42 Lakhs in the previous
year showing a Growth of Rs. 3.33 Lakhs.

The Profit after Tax (PAT) for the current year is Rs. 60.94 Lakhs as against the profit of Rs. 120.10 Lakhs in
the previous year showing a Decline of Rs 59.16 Lakhs.

Changes in Registered Office
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The Company has shifted its registered office, details of which are mentioned below:

Effective Date From To Reason
October 10,2023 612, 6th Floor, Shree Balaji Office No. 508, Fifth Floor, Operational
Heights, Kokilaben = Vyas Priviera Nehru Nagar, Convenience
Marg, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad Ahmedabad — 380 015, Gujarat,
— 380009, India

Gujarat, India

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which have
occurred between the end of the financial year 2023-24 and the date of this Report expect the changes provided
in this report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year
under review.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances and keeping
in view the company policy, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the
year under review.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The company is the SEBI Category-I Merchant Banker. The company provides the Merchant Banking and
allied Advisory Services.

For further details with respect to overview of the industry and important changes in the industry during the
last year, external environment and economic outlook please refer Management Discussion and Analysis
Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorized Capital

The authorized share capital of the company is Rs 8,00,00,000/- divided into 80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs
10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital

As on date of this report the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company stood at Rs.
3,01,31,000 comprising 30,13,100 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

* The Board of Directors of the Company in the Board meeting dated August 29, 2024 have approved, subject
to approval of the shareholders, the issue of equity shares on basis of Right Issue to the existing shareholders
of the company pursuant to section 62(1)(a) and other rules and regulations applicable as on the date
mentioned hereof.
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Further details of the issue have been provided in the notice of the 30" Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

CREDIT RATING
During the period under review the company is not required to take credit rating.
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the period under review the provisions relating to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) is
not applicable to the company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 315 March, 2024 is as follows:

Sr. No. = Name of the Director Category

1. Mr. Pradip Sandhir Managing Director

2. Mr. Mayur Parikh Non- Executive

3. Mrs. Rutu Sanghvi Non- Executive Independent Director
4, Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Non- Executive Independent Director

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment:

Mr. Mayur Parikh (DIN: 00005646), Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and being eligible have offered himself
for re-appointment.

Appropriate business for his re-appointment is being placed for the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the Director and other related information has been
detailed in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company.

In terms of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, brief resume in respect of the Director who
is retiring by rotation and proposed to be re-appointed, is provided in the Notice convening the 30" AGM of
the Company.

Change in Board Composition

During the period under review, there was no change in the Composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Changes in Board Composition after end of financial Year.

The Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, have approved the change in designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh (DIN: 00005646) from Non-
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Executive Director to Non-Executive Director, of the company, w.e.f. May 29, 2024, subject to approval of
the shareholders of the Company.

On August 29, 2024, the board of directors of the company, based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee have appointed Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738) as an Additional Director in the
capacity of an Independent Director, subject to approval of shareholders of the company. Mr. Monil Shah will
hold the office upto the date of 30" Annual General Meeting.

Approval of shareholders is sought at the 30" Annual General Meeting for the:

1. Re-designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh as the Executive Director of the company liable to retire by rotation,
and
2. Appointment of Mr. Monil Shah as an Independent Director of the Company

The board and the Nomination & Remuneration Committee recommended the re-designation and appointment
the Directors. The detail terms of appointment of the said directors are set out in the explanatory statement of
Notice of 30" Annual General meeting.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from Mr. Raghav Jobanputra (DIN: 10066298) and Ms. Rutu
Sanghavi (DIN: 09494473) Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies Act,
2013 confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said
declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of
the veracity of the same. The Independent directors have complied with the code for independent director as
prescribed in schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and code of conduct for the board of directors and
senior management personnel of the company.

All the Independent Directors of the Company have enrolled their names in the online database of Independent
Directors by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of the regulatory requirements. Also, the online
proficiency self-assessment test as mandated will be undertaken by those Independent Directors of the
Company who are not exempted within the prescribed timelines.

The company had formulated and implemented code of conduct for the board of directors and senior
management  personnel of the company which is available on the Company’s
website: http://ifinservices.in/pdf/Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management.pdf.

Key Managerial Personnel
During the year under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnels of the Company.

Hence, as per the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, As on the date of this report, Mr.
Pradip Sandhir, Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Jaini Jain, Company Secretary, are
the key managerial personnels of the Company.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met 5 times during the Financial Year 2023-2024. Board of Directors meeting were held on May
27, 2023, August 14, 2023, October 10, 2023, November 10, 2023, February 14, 2024 to transact various
business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are various committees constituted as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 namely Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The constitution of all the committees
as on March 31, 2024 are mentioned below.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has formed the Audit Committee as per the provisions of the Section 177 of the Act read with
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The constituted Audit
Committee comprises following members as on March 31, 2024.

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director

Mr. Mayur Parikh Member Non-Executive Director

*Mr. Monil Shah Member Additional Director in the capacity of

Independent Director

*The Audit Committee of the company was duly reconstituted in the Board meeting held on August 29, 2024 and Mr.
Monil Shah was appointed as a member in the committee.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary of the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee shall attend the Annual General Meeting of our Company to furnish clarifications to the
shareholders in any matter relating to financial statements.

The Committee met 4 times during the Financial Year 2023-2024. The meetings were held on May 27, 2023,
August 14, 2023, November 10, 2023, and February 14, 2024 to transact various business.

The powers, roles and terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with the Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has formed the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per Section 178 and other
applicable provisions of the act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the following members as on March 31,
2024:
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Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Chairman Independent Director
Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Member Independent Director
*Mr. Monil Shah Member Additional Director in the capacity of

Independent Director

*The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company was duly reconstituted in the Board meeting held on
August 29, 2024 and Mr. Monil Shah was appointed as a member in the committee.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Committee met 4 times during the financial year 2023-2024. The meetings were held on May 27, 2023,
August 14, 2023, November 10, 2023, and February 14, 2024 to transact various business.

The roles and terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as applicable.

3. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Our Company has formed the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Section 178 and other applicable
provisions of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following members as on March 31,
2024:

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship
Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director
Mr. Pradip Sandhir Member Managing Director

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The Committee met 1 time during the Financial Year 2023-2024, on November 10, 2023 to transact various
business.

The roles and terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as applicable.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

During the year, all recommendations of Audit Committee were approved by the Board of Directors.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
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The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee have formulated the criteria for appointment of Executive,
Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company and persons in the Senior
Management of the Company, their remuneration including determination of qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other matters as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being
in force).

The said policy is available on the website of the company at
http://ifinservices.in/pdf/Nomination _and Remuneration Policy.pdf

EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under and in compliance
with the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of
the performance of the Board as a whole, Individual Directors including Independent Directors, Non-
Independent Directors, Chairperson and the Board Committees. A structured questionnaire was prepared after
taking into consideration the inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board's
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Meetings of the board,
functioning of the board, effectiveness of board processes, Board culture, execution and performance of
specific duties, obligations and governance.

The exercise was also carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman
of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence
of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the
director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors
was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Key Managerial
Personnel. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of
Directors/employees of the Company is set out in “Annexure - [1]” of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Board
of Directors of the Company, hereby state and confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 315 March, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;
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b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the financial year ended
318t March, 2024;

¢) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Board has adopted policies and procedure for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial disclosures.

During the year no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company has not reported any fraud to the Audit Committee or Board or to the Central
Government under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the period under review, the company is not having any subsidiary, joint venture and associate
company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73 and
74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further,
Company does not have any deposit which is in violation of Chapter V of the Act.

LOANS TAKEN FROM DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the Company has not taken loans from any directors of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The details of Loans, guarantee and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are
given in the Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Annual Report.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the FY 2023-24, Company has entered into some transactions with related parties as defined under
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, which were in the ordinary course of business and at arms’ length
basis. Further, the transactions were in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
rules framed thereunder and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. All transactions with related parties were
entered with approval of the Audit Committee.

The details of the related party transactions as required under IND AS - 24 are set out in Notes to the financial
statements.

The Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions, the same is available on Company’s
website at http://ifinservices.in/pdf/Related Party Transaction Policy.pdf.

The detail disclosure of these transactions in Form AOC- 2 pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out as “Annexure - [2]”to this
Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The provisions relating to the corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the company during the
Financial Year 2023-24.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Conservation of Energy

In its endeavor towards conservation of energy your company ensure optimal use of energy, avoid wastages
and conserve energy as far as possible.

Technology Absorption
The Company has not carried out any research and development activities.
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company has not made any transaction with any foreign country. Therefore, during the period under
review there is no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The Company through Board and Audit Committee
oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact assessment, effective
implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting. Risk Management forms an integral part of the
Company’s planning process.
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The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified
by the business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on continuing basis.

There are no risks, which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.
VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the
provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 4(2)(d)(iv) read with Regulation 22
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The policy enables stakeholders, including individual employees,
directors and their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical
practices, instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of
conduct. The Policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Director(s)/ employee(s) and direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The Protected Disclosures,
if any reported under this Policy will be appropriately and expeditiously investigated by the Chairman.

Your Company hereby affirms that no Director, employee or any other personnel has been denied access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaint was received during the year.

The Whistle Blower Policy has been disclosed on the Company’s website under the weblink
https://ifinservices.in/pdf/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY.pdf and has been circulated to all the Directors /
employees.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts, Tribunals, Statutory and quasi-
judicial body impacting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.

The details of litigation on tax and other relevant matters are disclosed in the Auditors’ Report and Financial
Statements which forms part of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. B. T. Vora & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company at the
29" AGM held on September 27, 2023 for the second term of five consecutive financial years.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for
any further comments. The Auditors’ Report dated May 29, 2024 is unmodified and does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or to the Board.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board has appointed Ms. Insiya Nalawala, proprietor of M/s Insiya Nalawala and Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24
pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
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and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as
amended.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form No. MR — 3 for the Financial Year 2023-24 is annexed
herewith as “Annexure - [3]” to this Report.

The Secretarial Auditor had marked observation/qualification in its report for not taking approval of

Shareholders for Loan given by the company to persons in which director of the company was interested, the
company had placed the resolution for ratification of shareholders in this 30" AGM.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India on Board meetings and General Meetings respectively.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

During the period under review no corporate insolvency resolution process is initiated against the company
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC).

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE ACTION

During the year under review, the company has not failed to implement any corporate actions within the
specified time limit.

ANNUAL RETURN

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the Annual Return for FY
2023-24 is uploaded on the website of the Company and the same is available at https://ifinservices.in/

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act,2013 are not applicable to the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR)

As per requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a detailed review of the developments in the
industry, performance of the Company, opportunities and risks, segment wise and product wise performance,
internal control systems, outlook etc. of the Company is given under the head Management Discussion and
Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. However, pursuant
to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the
Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI (Listing
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and therefore the Company has not provided a
separate report on Corporate Governance, although few of the information are provided in this report of
Directors under relevant heading.

DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has formulated a policy on
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules
thereunder for prevention and Redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

The policy aims to provide protection to employees at workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual
harassment and for the matters connected and incidental thereto, with the objective of providing safe working
environment, where employees feel secure.

An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to Redress complaints related to sexual harassment. During
the Financial year 2023-24, the company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment at workplace.
Further, there was not any complaint pending at the beginning of the year or at the end of the year.

WEBSITE

As per Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the
Company has maintained a functional website namely https://ifinservices.in/containing basic information
about the Company. The website of the Company is containing information like Policies, Shareholding
Pattern, Financial and information of the designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting
and handling investor grievances for the benefit of all stakeholders of the Company.
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support to the Company during the year under review. The Directors also wish to place on record their
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Date: August 29, 2024 Pradip Sandhir Mayur Parikh
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Executive Director
DIN: 06946411 DIN: 00005646
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Annexure [1] to Board’s Report

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the employees of the

Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024 is as follows:

Name of Director

Designation

Total Annual
Remuneration (Rs.)

Ratio of
remuneration of
director to the
Median
remuneration

Mr. Pradip Sandhir

Managing Director

10,50,000

3.46

*Mr. Mayur Parikh

Executive Director

*The Designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh has been changed from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director
of the Company with effect from May 29, 2024. Hence, in FY 2023-24 he was not paid any remuneration.

Notes:

1. Independent Directors are paid only sitting fees for attending the board meetings. The sitting fees paid to

Independent Directors is not covered in the above table.

2. Median remuneration of the Company for all its employees is Rs. 3,03,900/- per annum for the financial

year 2023-24.

3. The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 2023-24.

B. Details of percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer & Company Secretary in the financial year 2023-24 is as follows:

Name Designation Remuneration (in Rs.) Increase Decrease
2023-24 2022-2023 (%) (%)
Mr. Pradip Sandhir| Managing Director 10,50,000 1,75,000 500% -
& Chief Financial
Officer
*Mr. Mayur Executive Director - - -
Parikh
Ms. Jaini Jain Company Secretary 12,25,000 6,90,000 77.54% -
& Compliance
Officer

*The Designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh has been changed from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director
of the Company with effect from May 29, 2024. Hence, he was not paid any remuneration in FY 2022-23 and

FY 2023-24.

C. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the Financial Year 2023-24:

6.07%
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D.

E.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31 March, 2024: 7 employees

Comparison of average percentage increase in salary of employees other than the Managerial
personnel and the percentage increase in the managerial remuneration

Remuneration to Managerial Personnel (MD & WTD) is provided in point B of Annexure-1. While Average
salary of all employees other than Managerial Personnel is increase by 27.41 % in FY 2023-24 compared to
FY 2023-24.

F.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

G. Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
1. List of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn in FY 2023-24:
Sr. Name Remuneration Received Date of Appointment  Last Employment
No. (CTC) (PA) (If any)
1 Ms. Pooja Shah  12,25,000 August 31, 2021 Self employed
2 Ms. Jaini Jain 12,25,000 August 31, 2021 Rising Hotel Limited
3 Mr. Ayush 7,49,800 September 20, 2022 OSSLA Group
Sharma
4 Mr. Sudesh 3,03,900 July 15, 2024 -
5 Dhrumin 2,25,000 August 01, 2024 -
6 Mr. Dinesh 1,26,000 June 01, 2022 -
Datania
7 Mr. Vikas 1,00,000 August 01, 2024 -
Rathod
2. Employees employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year
which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees: Not Applicable
3. Employees employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part
of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees
per month: Not Applicable
4. Employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration

in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in
excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by
himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity
shares of the company:

There was no such employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof who was in receipt
of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the
aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and
holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity
shares of the company.
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The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnels of
the Company are as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

5. Remuneration received by Managing Director from subsidiary company.
There are no subsidiary companies of Interactive Financial Services Limited. Hence, no remuneration has

been received by the Managing Director from such Companies.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Date: August 29, 2024 Pradip Sandhir Mayur Parikh
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Executive Director
DIN: 06946411 DIN: 00005646
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[Annexure — 2] to Board’s Report

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of Business: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Date: August 29, 2024 Pradip Sandhir Mayur Parikh
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Executive Director
DIN: 06946411 DIN: 00005646
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[Annexure — 3] to Board’s Report
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Interactive Financial Services Limited
CIN: L65910GJ1994PL.C023393
Office No. 508, 5" Floor,

Priviera, Nehru Nagar,

Ahmedabad - 380 015, Gujarat, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Interactive Financial Services Limited. (hereinafter called the “company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, [ hereby report that in my opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Interactive Financial Services Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(i1))  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

W) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under; There are no
event occurred during the period which attract the provisions of these regulations and therefore
not applicable to the company during the Audit Period;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;

(e) SEBI (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992,
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i1)) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above expect as mentioned below:

Sr. Compliance Requirement non compliances / observations /
No. Applicable Section/Rule/Regulation | audit qualification, reservation or adverse remarks
1

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed
by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the
Company.

I further report that the board of directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information

and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority and captured in the Minutes.
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

Date: August 29, 2024 For, Insiya Nalawala & Associates
Place: Ahmedabad Company Secretaries

Insiya Nalawala

Proprietor

M. No.: A57573

C P No.: 22786

Peer Review No.: 5443/2024
UDIN: A057573F001065668

Note: This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A forms an integral
part of this report.
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Annexure A
To,
The Members,
Interactive Financial Services Limited
CIN: L65910GJ1994PL.C023393
Office No. 508, Fifth Floor,
Priviera, Nehru Nagar
Ahmedabad - 380 015, Gujarat, India

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis, on
the records and documents provided by the Management of the Company, to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices followed by me provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. T have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

4. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification of procedures on test
basis.

5. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: August 29, 2024 For, Insiya Nalawala & Associates
Place: Ahmedabad Company Secretaries

Insiya Nalawala

Proprietor

M. No.: A57573

C P No.: 22786

Peer Review No.: 5443/2024
UDIN: A057573F001065668
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY

India’s economy carried forward the momentum it built in FY23 into FY24 despite a gamut of global and
external challenges, it is on a strong wicket and stable footing, demonstrating resilience in the face of
geopolitical challenges. The Indian economy has consolidated its post-Covid recovery with policymakers —
fiscal and monetary — ensuring economic and financial stability.

The Indian economy's financial and banking sectors have shown strong performance despite continuous
geopolitical challenges. The Central Bank maintained a steady policy rate throughout the year, with the overall
inflation rate under control. The Capital markets have also shown impressive results, with India's stock market
capitalisation to GDP ratio ranking fifth globally. The presence of a robust Digital Public Infrastructure (DPI)
and the greater involvement of banks and microfinance institutions (MFIs) have contributed to improved
financial inclusion. The insurance and pension sectors are also doing well, as indicated by their expanding
coverage.

Indian capital markets have been one of the best performing among emerging markets in FY24, Capital
markets are becoming prominent in India’s growth story, with an expanding share in capital formation and
investment landscape on the back of technology, innovation, and digitisation.

The number of initial public offers (IPOs) increased by 66 per cent in FY24 from 164 in FY23 to 272 in FY24,
while the amount raised grew by 24 per cent (from 354,773 crore in FY23 to R67,995 crore in FY24). SME
platforms at the exchanges witnessed heightened activities during FY24 as the number of [IPOs/FPOs (Follow-
on Public Offers) of SMEs increased by 1.6 times (from 125 in FY23 to 196 in FY24), while the corresponding
fund raised rose by more than two and half times over the previous year (from 2,333 crore in FY23 to 26,095
crore in FY24).

OUTLOOK

The Indian economy recovered swiftly from the pandemic, with its real GDP in FY24 being 20 per cent higher
than the pre-COVID, FY20 levels. This meant a CAGR of 4.6 per cent from FY20, despite a 5.8 per cent
decline in FY21 inflicted by the pandemic. Analysis in this chapter shows that the current GDP level is close
to the pre-pandemic trajectory in Q4FY24. During the decade ending FY20, India grew at an average annual
rate of 6.6 per cent, more or less reflecting the long-run growth prospects of the economy. This is the
background against which we can see the prospects for FY25.

The outlook for India’s financial sector appears bright. The vision of Viksit Bharat by 2047 is indeed an
opportunity for a prosperous society, robust financial services sector, strong public finances, and economic
sovereignty. The elements of a robust financial services sector include a highly competitive and viable banking
sector, universal access to banking and other financial services for all citizens, lowest intermediation costs,
efficient and quick access to credit and equity funding for small businesses, highly liquid, efficient, and well-
regulated stock, bond, and commodity markets.
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The next big step in the coming years is likely to be towards Artificial Intelligence/ Machine Learning
(AI/ML), Decentralised Finance, Internet of Things (IoT), etc., which have a vast potential to disrupt the
digital payments ecosystem. Further, the vision is for India to evolve as a ‘fintech nation’ with the highest
number of fintech firms and the highest fintech adoption rate by incumbents fuelled by digital public
infrastructure.

The Indian financial sector is at a turnpike moment. The dominance of banking support to credit is being
reduced, and the role of capital markets is rising. For a country that aspires to be a developed nation by 2047,
this is a long-awaited and welcome development. Being reliant on and exposed to the capital market, however,
comes with its challenges and trade-offs. As India’s financial sector undergoes this critical transformation, it
must also brace for likely vulnerabilities and prepare itself with regulatory and government policy levers to
intervene and hedge, as required.

(Source: Economic Survey Report 2023-24)

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The services sector continues to be a significant contributor to India's growth, accounting for about 55 per
cent of the total size of the economy in FY24. The significant domestic demand for services such as education,
healthcare, finance, tourism, hospitality, and entertainment is underpinned by a large and young population.
Rapid urbanisation supports transportation, housing, sanitation, and utility services. The expansion of e-
commerce platforms has generated heightened requirements for logistics, digital payments, and related
services.

Indian stock market was among the best-performing markets, with India’s Nifty 50 index ascending by 26.8
per cent during FY24, as against (-)8.2 per cent during FY23. The market capitalisation of the Indian stock
market has seen a remarkable surge, with the market capitalisation to GDP ratio being the fifth largest in the
World

The Government has played a crucial role in fostering the growth and competitiveness of India's services
sector by creating an enabling environment, promoting investment, enhancing skills, and facilitating market
access. For instance, the Digital India campaign has fostered growth in digital services, export promotion
schemes have encouraged services exports, infrastructure development has boosted logistics, tourism, and
hospitality industry, and skill development initiatives have provided increased opportunities for the workforce.
Furthermore, targeted efforts in healthcare and tourism have enhanced accessibility and development,
ensuring a promising future for India's services sector.

Road Ahead

India's services sector has thrived on low-cost offerings. The digitisation of services, coupled with appropriate
policy nudges, kept progressively transforming the nature of service delivery almost irreversibly during the
early part of the last decade. The services exports are diversifying beyond software to include Human
Resources (HR), legal, and design services in line with emerging global demands. Thus, two significant
transformations are reshaping India's services landscape: the rapid technology-driven transformation of
domestic service delivery and the diversification of India's services exports.
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Domestically, start-ups drive innovation, improving access to credit, raw materials, and markets. Aided by the
deep technology ecosystem and the consistent policy push, many technology start-ups are digitising
manufacturing and other services. The embedded service content of the non-service economic activities has
increased significantly, as evidenced by the National Accounts Statistics. The post-production value addition
in activities is also increasingly dependent on services like e-commerce, innovative packaging and
advertisement and modern logistics services.

(Source: Economic Survey Report 2023-24)

2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES:

With continuous support by the Government towards entrepreneurship (e.g. ease of doing business), India
sees an increasing number of startups and small businesses. With the advent of SME exchange, it has become
easier for SMEs to get listed. Furthermore, the rising penetration of private equity and venture capital in Indian

startups is expected to result in increased M&As and IPOs.

* Revival from Indian Equity market post lock down will revive the IPO deals and thereby push demand
of merchant bankers.

* Growth in foreign direct investment and also funding by promoters in to companies will push demand
of merchant bankers for valuation assignments.

* Various funding transactions push demand of merchant bankers for valuation certifications.
THREATS:
Despite opportunities, there are significant factors presenting threats to our business viz:

* Capital Market gets affected by events such as interest rate hikes, monsoon performance, tax concerns,
other global events & domestic political events such as interim & state elections.

* Continuous downward pressure on the fees and commissions caused by heightened competition and
willingness of most players to deliver services at very low fees.

* The effect of any of the adverse events on the capital market would pose a threat for the process of
capital formation and resource raising.

3. SEGMENT-WISE / PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

The Company has delivered a satisfactory financial and operating performance for 2023-24. The total revenue
is ¥ 306.66 lakhs in FY 2023-24 as compared to 155.77 lakhs in FY 2022-23. The Profit before interest and
taxes stands X 156.76 lakhs for the FY 2023-24 as against X 153.42 lakhs in 2022-23.

4. OUTLOOK FOR FY 2024-24

* To become top Merchant Banker in India for Services like I[PO, Valuation and Business Advisory.
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* To provide solutions to our clients with a vision to maximize their growth by placing the highest
importance on quality, professionalism, integrity and confidentiality.

5. RISK AND CONCERN

The Company’s ability to foresee and manage business risks is crucial in achieving favorable results. Risk
management at Interactive Financial Services Limited is an integral part of the business, focusing to mitigate
the adverse impact of risks on business objectives. The Company has laid down a well-defined risk
management procedure covering the risk identification, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation
process. The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the
same through a properly defined framework.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUECY

The Company has an adequate internal control system adopted for operating procedures, policies and process
guidelines. The guidelines are well-documented with clearly defined authority limits corresponding with the
level of responsibility for each functional area. Further, the Company has budgetary control system to monitor
expenditure against approved budgets on an ongoing basis. The Company’s robust internal audit programme
which works to conduct a risk-based audit not only tests the adherence to laid down policies and procedures
but also suggests improvements in the current processes and systems.

7. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

The Financial performance of the company during the FY 2023-24 as compared to FY 2022-23 is as
under:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 % of
Increase/Decrease

Gross Revenue from 306.65 155.77 96.86%

operations

Profit Before Tax 156.75 153.42 02.17%

Profit after Tax 60.94 120.10 (49.26)

Operational Performance

The Company continued to focus on improving operational efficiency leading to better returns for the
shareholders. Further, the company has significantly enhanced its operational performance by establishing
prudent risk management framework.

8. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONSHIP
FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEPOLE EMPLOYED

Human resource practices and policies at Interactive Financial Services Limited ensure that all employees,
wherever they work, whatever their role is, are always treated equally, fairly and respectfully. We maintain
consistent and transparent diversity policies.

Our human resource team believes in personnel management, which involves planning, organizing, directing
and controlling of the recruitment and resource management, training & development, compensation,
integration and maintenance of people for the purpose of contributing to organizational, individual and social
goals.
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People power is one of the pillars of success of company. As on 315 March, 2024 the Company employs 07
employees. Going ahead, the Company aims to retain and develop the existing employees and align their goals
with the common business vision and mission.

9. THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

During the financial year, the details of significant change in the key financial ratios i.e. change of more than
25% as compared to the previous year along with the detailed explanation is summarized below on standalone
basis:

Sr. Key Financial Ratios F.Y. F.Y. Changes in Reasons for change
No. 2023-24 2022-23 %
1. Debtors Turnover 16 3 533.33% Increase in days in
Ratio (in days) receivables is due to
recent  increase  in
turnover.
2. Inventory  Turnover NA NA - -
Ratio
3. Interest Coverage NA NA - -
Ratio
4, Current Ratio (in 13.80 6.45 213.95% Increase in ratio is
times) mainly due to increase
in advances given
5. Debt Equity Ratio NA NA - -
(in times)
6. Operating Margin (in 38.44% 20.84% 184% Increase in Revenue
%) from operation.
7. Net Profit Margin Increase is mainly due to
(in %) Fair Value Gain on
119.51% 46.92% 254.92% Equity Investments

through Other
Comprehensive Income

The Return on Net Worth during the FY 2023-24 was 29.34% as compared to 08.49% in FY 2022-23. The
increase in the return on Net Worth is mainly due to increase in profit of the company.

10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement made in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the various parts may be “forward
looking statement” within the meaning of application securities laws and regulations. The actual result may
differ from those expectations depending upon the economic conditions, changes in Government regulation
and amendments in tax laws and other internal and external factors.
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B. T. VORA & CO.

Chartered Accountants INDIA

310, Interstellar, Nr. PRL Colony, Off Sindhu Bhavan Road, Thaltej, Anmedabad - 380 059. M. : 9327014688, 8780635538 E.: btvera@hotmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members,
Interactive Financial Services Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Interactive Financial Services Limited (“the Company”), which
comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of changes in equity, the Cashflow Statement for the ycar then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as the financial statements). '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
the changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Emphasis on Matter

Building & Furniture located at 603, Harekrishna Complex, Paldi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat having carrying amount of Rs. 1.58
lacs earlier upto F.Y. 2021-22 were included in Property, Plant & Equipment which were classified as Non current Asset
Held for Sale as per Note No. 9 during F.Y. 2022-23. As per Indian Accounting Standard - 105, one of condition to classify
the asset held for sale is that sale should be completed with in 12 months of classification but there are exceptions to that
condition and extension of period for more than 12 months is allowed. As per written representation received from the
management, there is no change in plan to sell the asset in current condition, but due to certain local regulatory constraints,
they are not able to execute the sale in given period of time. Also, as there is change in management during F.Y. 2022-23,
the documents necessary to exccute the sale are still under process. We have received no documentary evidences regarding
condition that fulfill for extension of time beyond 12 months, but given the nature of property being immovable nature, such
scenarios are common. Except to above observation, we do not find classification of such asset held for sale to be
inappropriate or inaccurate.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

FRNO.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance report and sharcholder's information but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our andit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pasition, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As parl of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughaut the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. < NOR4 $
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of Mmanagement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a materjal uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based o the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
audifor’s report. However, future €Vvents or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overal] bresentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable yser of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative Materiality and qualitatjve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit,

We also provide those charged with gsovernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and 10 communicate with them al] relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financja] statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such comimunication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (1) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure “A” a statement on the matters
specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

—

2 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of gur audit.

(b) in our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law, so far as appears from our
examination of the books.

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the stalement of changes in equity
and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) on the basis of written fepresentations received from the directors as on March 3 [, 2024 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors s disqualified as on March 3 I, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of
scction 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013,

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls gver financial reporting of the Company and the
Operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our Separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report éxpresses an
unmadified opinion on the adequacy and Operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting,

aati
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(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us :-

(i) The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
(i) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foresceable losses.
(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other scurces or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the company with effect from
April 1, 2023, However, Based on our examination, the company, has used an accounting software Tally Prime which
is operated by a third party software service provider, for maintaining its books of account and in absence of audit trail
(edit log) we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software or whether there were any instances of the
audit trail feature been tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 3 1,2024.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

R

.

I C. A. SHETH
Place : Ahmedabad N Partner
Date : 29th May, 2024 ' Membership No.180506

UDIN : 24180506 BKHAFL9580



Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements of our report of
even date;
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to

us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) Inrespect of Fixed Assets
a. A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and location of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) No Intangible assets are held by the‘Company as on the balance sheet date. Accordingly. Paragraph
1(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable during the year under review.

b The management during the year Has physically verified all the Property, Plant and Equipment.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there is a regular programme of
verification which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c Based upon the audit procedure performed and according to the records of the Company, the title
deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the company and was verified by us.

d the company has not revalued its PPE or Intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, Paragraphs
1(d) of the Order is not applicable during the year under review.

e According to the information and explanations given to us, No proceedings have been initiated or

are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i1) a The company’s nature of operation (Service provider) does not require it to hold inventories.
Therefore, the provisions of clause Il (a) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.
b During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned any working capital

limits, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

(iif) The Company has made investment in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and granted
unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

a  During the year, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to the following entities:

Sr. No. (Particulars Unsecured Loans (Amount in lakhs)

1 Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year
- Subsidiaries -
- Joint Ventures -
- Associates -
- Others 843.00

8]

Balance outstanding as at March 31, 2024 in respect of]
above cases

- Subsidiaries -

- Joint Ventures -
- Associates -
- Others 1033.73

b In our opinion, the investment made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Ahﬂ"\f‘[;g\'_lid s
\  FRNO. ool
123652W




¢ The schedule of repayment of principal and bayment of interest in respect of the loans and advances in
the nature of loans have not been stipulated

d The schedule of repayment of principal and bayment of interest in respec
the nature of Joans have not been stipulated as these |

Paragraph 3 of the Order,

¢ There were no loang or advances in the nature of loan granted which has/have fallen due during the
ded.

Year, have been renewed or exten

ggregate amount of loans/advances in nature of loan
- Repayable on demand (A)
-Agreement does not specify any terms or period o

"epayment (B)
Total (A+B)
Percenta

age of loans/advances in nature of Joan to the total

(iv) The Company has complied with the Provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act i
grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, ag applicable,

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence reporting
under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

applicable to the Company.

(vii) According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues:
a  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of Our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted / accryed in the books of account in respect of undisputed
Statutory dues including Income Tax, Goods & Services tax and other materia] statutory dues have
been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritjes, As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employees' state insurance, provident fund,
Sales tax, VAT, cess, duty of excise and duty of customs,

b There are no amounts of any statutory dues which are yet to be deposited on account of any dispute
EXcept as stated below.

Name of [Nature of the Period to which the Forum where dispyg _—
Statue Dues amount relate orum where dispute is pen mng
l!;:;:\:l}z;‘?x W 149.08 A.Y.2018-19 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

(viii) We have not come across any transaction(s) which were previously not recorded in the books of account of
the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year jn the tax assessments under
the Income Tay Act, 1961, :




(ix)

(x)

(xi)

jav)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest
thereon to the lender. Therefore, details required under clause 3 ix(a) is not applicable.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year/and there were no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix) (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

We report that the company has not utilised funds raised on short term basis for long term purpose.
Accordingly, reporting under this clause (ix) (d) is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies, as defined under the Act.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to information provided to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares -or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company nor
any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such instance by the management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the auditors
of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

As represented by the management, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has complied with
provisions of Section 177 of the Act with respect to transactions with related parties and the company has not
entered into any transactions with related parties which attract provisions of Section 188 of the Act.

(xiv)

a

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business,

We have not received Internal audit report till date. However, Internal audit report is awaited and as
informed there is no significant material discrepancy found during Internal audit.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.




(xvi)

" The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-JA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
(Tj) 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable,

The Company is not 3 Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment Companies
(c (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 ("Direclions”) by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting
) under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.,

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial year,

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordin ly, clause 3(xviii) of the
g Y g ¥ g

(xix)

(xx)

Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financia] assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other informatjon accompanying financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence Supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which cause us 1o believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of this audit report and that the Comipany is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to date of the andit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that al]
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due,

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clause
(xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

C. A. SHETH
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 29th May, 2024 Membership No.180506

UDIN : 241 80506 BKHAFL9580



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED.

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Interactive Financial Services

Limited (“the Company™) as of 3]st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date,

at March 31, 2024, based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on “the internal control over financial réporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were Operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to €Xpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deenied to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
System over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the campany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

could have a material effect on the financia] statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
] Chartered Accountants
Firm'Registration No. 123652

Partner
) Membership No.180506
UDIN : 24180506BKHAF1,9580

Place : Ahmedabad
Date :29th May, 2024




STATEMENT ON MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interactive Financial Services Limited (" the Company ") is a Listed Public Limited Company
engazed primarily in providing Merchant Banking and allieq services, The Company is a SEB]
Regisiered Category T Merchant Banker, The Company s registered office is at 508, 5th Flaor,
Privicra, Nehrunagar, Ahmedahad - 380015, Gujarat, India,

BACKGROUND

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL, ACCOUNTING POLICIES
L1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS

a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial Slatemients have heen Prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to Szction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act') read with of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as aimended and other relevant provisions of the Act and the
guidelines isaued by Securities Exchange of Indig (SEBI) to the extent applicable, The accounting
policies are applied consisiently to al] the periods presented in the financials,

b) Funetional ang presentation currency
These finuncial Slalements are presented in Indian rupces which is the Company " 5 functional
currency, in lakhs rounded off to two decimals Exrcept as otherwise stated as permitied by Schedule
T of the Companies Act,

¢) Basis of Measurement

These finangia] Statements have heen Prepared on a historical Cost convention basis, €xcept for the
following:

(i) Certain financial assels and liahilities that are measured at fair value,

(i) Assers held for sale- Measured at the lower of (a) carrying amount and (b) Fair Value Jess aost
to sell. In absence of Certain amount of Fair Value of Office Building & Furniture held for sale,

(iii) Net defined benefit plans- Plan assls measured ar Fajr Value less present value of defined
benefit obligation,

(iv) Delcrmining the Fair Valye

While measuring the Fair Valye ofan assciora liahility, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible, Fajr values are categurised into different levels in a Fajr Value hicrarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows,

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Leve] 2: inputs other than quoted prices jnchided in Level 1 that are observahle for the asset or
liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices),

Level 3: inputs for the gs.ct or liahility that are not based on observable market dara (unobservable
inputs),

[f the inputs used to measure the Fair Value of an posct or a liability fall into different levels of the
Fair Value hicrarchy, then the fair value Mmeasurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the Fajr Value hicrarchy as the lowest Jevel input that s significant to the entire
messurement,




d)

c)

12

a)
(i)

Use of Estimates and Judgement

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affec( the application of accounting policies and the
reported amiount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resylts may differ from these
estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisians to
the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are known or
materialised. The mast significant estimates and assumplions are described below:

Assumptions and Estimations

Information ahaut assumption and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in
a malcrial adjustment are as below:

L Impairment test of non-financial assets

For the purpose of a5 ssing recoverability of nan-financial assels, assels are grouped at the
lower levels for which there are individually identifiable cash flows (Cash Generating Units),

2. Allowance for bad debts

The Management mikes estimales related to the recoverability of receivables, whase haok
values are adjusted through an allowance for Expected losses, Management specifically
analyzes accounts receivable, customers ¢ creditworthiness, current economic trends and
changes in customer’s collection terms when assessing the adequate allowance for expected
lesses, which are estimated over the lifelime of the debis,

3. Recognition and measurement of Provisions and Contingencies

The Company’s Management estimates key assumptions ahout the likelihood and magnitude
of an outflow of resaurces based on availahle information and the assumiptions and methods
decmed appropriate. Wherever required, these estimates are prepared with the assistance of
legal counsel. As and when additional informaiion becomes availahle to the Company,
estimates are revised and adjusted periodically,

4. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

The Management makes estimaics as regards to availability of future taxable profits against
which unahsarbed depreciation/ tax losses carried forward can be used,

3. Measurements of Defined benefit obligations
The measurements are based on key actuarial assumptions, if applicable,

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company* s
normal operating cycle (not exceeding twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111
to the Companies Act.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial Statements and nofes have been rounded off to the nearest
Tupee as per the requirement of Schedule I11, unless otherwise stated,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

The Company had applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost
on the transition date ie, Ist April, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS. Hence regarded
thereafter as hisiorical cost,

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaj
Property, Plant and Equipment Comprises:




(i)

(i)

b)

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

¢)

a) its purchase price, including impart duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rehates.

b) any costs directly atiributahle to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management,

¢) the initial estimate of the caosts of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located,

IF significant parts of an item of Py operty. Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separute items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment and
depreciated accordingly. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of Praperty, Plant and Equipment
is recognised in Statement of profit or lass.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it js prabable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company,

Depreciation, Estimated uscful life and estimated residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Methad, pro rata to the period of use, taking into
account useful lives and residual value of the asscts. The Company depreciates its property, plant
and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Act and
manageient believe that useful life of ae.cts are same as those prescribed in Schedule 11 to the
Act. Depreciation is computed with reference to cost or revalued value as per previous GAPP as
the case may be. The a-sets residual value and useful life are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on dispasal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts, These are included in the statement of Profit and Loss,

Intangible Assets

Recognition and measurement

Computer softwares have finite uscful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The same are tested for impairment, if any, at the end of
each accounting period,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure s capitalised only when it increases the future economic henefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. Al] other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally gencrated goodwill and brands, when incurred is recognised in statement of profit or

Amortisation

Amortisaiion is calculated to write off the cost of intangible asscis less their estimaied residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised
in staiement of profit or loss Computer software are amartised over their estimated useful life or §
Years, whichever is lower., Amiortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
cach reporting date and adjusicd, if required.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liahility or equity instrument of anather entity. Financial instruments also include
derivalive eontracts such as forcign currency foreign exchange forward conlracts, interest rate
swaps aind currency options,

Ahmiedahag
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(i) Financial Assets

A financial insirument is any contract that gives rise to g financial asset of one entity and g
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivative contracs such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward ‘ontracls, interest raje
$waps and currency options,

a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement calegories:

- those to be measured subscquently at Fajr Value Through Other Comprehensive Income-
[FVTOCI). or Fair Value Through Profit and [_c-ss-[FVTPL] and - those messured at
Amortised Cost.[AC). The classification depends on the Company * g business mode] for
managing the financial assets and the contraciual terms of the cash flows,

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value, Transaction
costs of financial 2sscts curried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

In case of investments
i) In Equity instruments

- For subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures - Investments are measured at cost and tested
for impairment periodically. Inpairment (if any) is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss

- For Other than subsidiaries, asso¢iates and Joint venture - Investments are measured at
FVTOCI.

ii) In Mutual fund
Measured at FVTPL,

iii) In Debt instruments

The Company measares the debts instruments at Amortised Cost. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows Tfepresent solely payment of
principal and interest [SPPI] are measured at amortised cost, Gain or loss on a debt
instrument that js subsequently measured at amortised cost and s not part of the hedging
relationship, is recognised in profit or loss when the guset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial as.ets is included in finance income using the Effeciive
interest rate methad,

¢) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derccognised only when:

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from financial asset, or

- Retains the contractug] rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assels, but assumes g
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients,

Where the Company has transferred an asset and has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised,

Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financiyl asset, the financial asuet is not derecognised,

Where the Company has nejther transferred a financial asset nor retaing substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained the control of the financial assel. Where the Company retains the
control of the financial asser. the assct is cantinyed to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial geset,




d) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 1G9, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Mode] for
Measurement and récognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk expasyre:

a) Financial as.eqs that are debt instruments angd are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities. deposits, and bank halance, Creepl where asaet ig DOt recoverable it wifl be
written in same year,

b) Trade receivahles,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowunce on:
- Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component,

The application of simplified appraach does not require the Company to frack changes in
credit rick, Rather, it recognises impairment less allowance based on lifetime ECLg at each
reporting dae, right from its initjal recugnition,

- For recognition of impairment Joss on other financia) asscls and rigk Exposiire, the Company
determines whether there has heen a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition, ECL s used to provide for ipairment lovs

(ii) Financial Liabilitieg
a) Cla:siﬁcation
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following Measureiment Calegories:

- those to be measured subscqiicntly at FVTPL and
- those measyreqd at Amortised Cogy (AC)

The classification depends on the Coimpany * s business mode) for Mmanaging the finangia]
assets and the contraciual terms of the cash flows,

b) Initig] recognition and measurcement

Financia) liabilities are ¢l
AC.

All financia) liabilities are recognised initially at Fajr Value and, in the case of loans and
burrowings and payables, pet of directly attributahle transaction costs,

The Company s financial liabilities include trade angd other payables, loans ang borrowings
including hank overdrafts, finaneia) Buarantee contracts gng derivative financial instruments,

ssified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL or

¢) Financia] liabilities at FVTPL,

Finanizial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at Fair Valye Through Profit or Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repuichasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments ehtered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments,

Gains or o:ues on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial Tecognition at FYTPY, are designated at the initial
date of Tecugnition, anly if the Criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designaled
as FVTPL, Fair Vajye gains/ losaes attributahle to changes in own gredit risk are recagnized
in OCL These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred 1o Stalement of profit o loss,
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, A other
changes in fair valye of such lja hility are recognised in the Sialement of profit or loss,

d) Loans and bormwings

After initial rec DENItoN, interest-he s ing lnans angd borrawings are subscqucutly measured at
amortised cost using the Effeciive Interest Rare (EIR) miethad, Gains and losses are
fecognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation progess, AC is ealculated by taking into account any discount o premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are ap integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortisation s
included as finance Costs in the statement of profit and loss. Thig category gencrally applies
to jnrcrcst-hem'ing loans and borrowings.
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¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liahility is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an exisiing financial liability is replaced by another from the saine
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
miodified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the derecagnition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of profit or Joss,

) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceahle legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simuilancously, The legally enforceable right must not he contingent on fuure events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty,

g) Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rage swaps and forward curmmodity contracis to hedge its foreign currency risks,
intcrest rate risks and commadity price risks respectively. Such derivative financia]
instruments are initially recognised at Fair Value on the date an which a derivative contracl is
éntered into and are suhsequently re-measared at Fair Value, Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the Fair Value is positive and as financial liabilities when the Faijr
Value is negutive.

d) Trade Receivables

Trade reccivable are recognised initially at Fajr Value and subsequently measured at AC using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment. As per Ind AS 109 the Company has
applied ECL for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. Where Company has offered
extended credit period [ECP] to the debitors, the said amount is recorded at present value, with
Curresponding credit in the Statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the extended credit
period,

¢) Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of Prescntation in the statement of the cash flows, cash and cash equivalent
includes the cxsh on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions other shoyt term, highly
liquid invesiments with original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of ¢ash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of ehanges in value,

f) Contributed Equity

Fquity shares are cla<sified as equity. Incidental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in cquity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

I)  Dividends

Provizion is made for the amount of any dividend declared, in the year in which it is to be approved
by sharcholders.

1) Earnings per share
(i) Basic carnings per share

Basic earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders
(adjusted for amaunts direcily charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Ttems (net of tax) by

Weighted average number of Equity shares (excluding treasury shares).
(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profiv(Less) attributable to equity holders

(adjusted for amounts directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Ttems (net of tax) by \JORZ
Weighted average number of Equity shares (exchuding treasury shares) considered for basic 5 &

earning per shares including dilutive potential Equity shares, 5
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c)

f)

g)

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at Fair Value, net of transaction costs {ncurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at AC. Any differcnce between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of borrowings using the
effective interest method. Pracessing/Upfront fee are treated as prepaid asset and netted off from
borrowings. The same is amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. Preference
shares are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, if approved, by
shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, are recognised in profit or loss as
finance costs, in the year when approved, Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid including any non-cash assets transferred or liability
assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit or loss as other gains or (losses). Borrowings are
clawsified as current liabilities unless the Company has an uncanditional right to defer the
settlement of liahilities for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of a material provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effeer that the liability hecomes payable on demand on the reporting dale,
the same is classified as current unless the lender agreed, afler the reporting period and before the
approval of financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a con sequence of the breach,

Trade and Other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial ycar which are unpaid at the period end. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 manths after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their Fair Value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the Company at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transactions, Monetary asscts (other than
investments in companies registered outside India) and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional carrency at the exchange rale at the reporting date.
Investiments in companies registered outside India are converted at rate prevailing at the date of
acquisition. Non-monetary asscts and liabilities that are measared at Fair Value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the Fair Value was
determined. Non-maonetary items that are measured based on histarical cost in a foreign currency
are not transiated. Difference on account of changes in foreign currency are generally charged to
the statement of profit & luss,

h) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is prabable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regirdless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the gavernment,

The Company derives revenues primarily from Merchant Banking Consultancy service fees which
includes arranger fees, advisory fees, lead manager fees and are recognized when the Company
satisfies performance obligation.

“Unbilled revenues® (contract asset) represent revenue earned in excess of billings as at the end of
the reporting period. Where right to cansideration is unconditional upon passage of time is
classified as a financial a<<et however, for fixed price development contracts, where milestone is
not due as per contract terms as on date of reporting, the same is classified as non-financial asset,




Other Income

a) Dividend income js recognised when right to receive dividend is established,

b) Interest and other income are recognised on acerual hasis on time proportion basis and measured
at effective interest rate and considered as business incorie,

¢) Income from Sale of Shares and Securities are recognized on the dale of the relevant
transaciions,

i) Government Grants

(i) Grants from the Government are recognised at their Fair Value where there is a reasonahle
fvsutance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached
conditions,

(i) Government grant relating to purchase of Py operty, Plant and Equipment are included in "Other
current/ non-current liabjljties" as Government Grant - Deferred Income and are credited to Profit
or loss on a siraight line hasis over the expecied life of the related asset and presented within
"Other Operating revenue”

1) Employce Benefits
(i) During Employment benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expecied to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation ta pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employce and the
obligation can be estimaied reliably,

(ii) Post-Employment benefits

(2) Defined contribution plans

A defined cantribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Company pays fixed
contribution into 2 separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
amounts. The Company has no obligation for payment to any contributions as per the relevant Act.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Company pays graluity to the eiuployces who have has completed five years of service with
the company at the time when employee leaves the Company. The graluity is payable as per the
provisions of Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972. The graluity liability is not ascertained as employees'
have no( completed five years of scrvice as on 3]st March, 2024,

(¢) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminaied by the Company hefore the
normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. In case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
meusured based on the number of employecs expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
mare than twelve months afier the end of reporting period are discounted to the prescnt value,

k) Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit
and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income
or in equity. In such cases, the tax is also recognised in the other comprehensive income or in
equity,

(a) Current Tax

Current tax a<s=(s and liabilities are measured at the amount expecied 1o be fecovered from or paid
to the taxation autharities, based 0N tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at
the Balance sheel date,




Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) has a legally enforceahle right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the [iahility
simultaneously,

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
tavable profit. Deferred tax linhilities and asscts are measured at the tax rales that are expecied to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the gsocl realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have enacted or subsequently enacied by the end of the Tfeporting period, The carrying
amount of deferred tax liabilities and asscls are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which they can be used.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expecis, at the reporting date, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of jts
dvsels and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels against current tax
liahilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liahiljties relate to income taxes levied by the same
taration authorily on the sume taxable Company,

1) Borrowing Costs

General and specific Borrowing costs that are dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying a<set that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended yse are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its
intended use or sale. Other borrowing casts are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred, Investment income carned on the temparary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible far
cupitalisation, All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
period for which they are incurred.

m) Leases

Effective Ist April, 2019, the compaiy adopted IND AS 116 - Leases, IFSL applied IND AS 116
using madified reliospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is
recognized in retained earnings at lst April 2019,

Accounting policy applicable from Ist April 2019

Atthe inception it is assesacd. whether a cantract is a Jease or cantains a lease, A contract is a lease
Or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified assct, for a period of
time. in exchange for consider ation,

To 2vscss whether g “antract conveys the right to contro] the use of an identified assel, company
@ssesses whether the contracy involves the use of an identified asset. Use may be specified
explicitly or implicitly.

Use should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacily of a physically

distinet asset,

If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the a<set is not identified.

Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the cconomic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the periad of use.
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Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

In cases where the usage of the asset js predetermined the right to direct the use of the asset is
determined when the company has the right to use the assct or the company designed the assct in g
way that predetermines how and for what burpose it will be used,

Company has the right to obtain substantially al] of the econamic benefits from use of the asse(
throughout the period of use

L Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

In cases where the usage of the asset s predetermined the right to direct the yse of the asset is
determined whep the Company has the right to use the asset or the Company designed the
assetin a way that predetermines haw and for what Purpose it will be ysed.

At the COMmmencement or modification of a fontract, that contains g lease Component,
Company allocates the consideration in the contract, to each lease tomponent, on the hasis of
its relative standalane prices, For leases of Property, it is elected not 10 separale non-lease
Guthponents and account for the lease and non-lease Components as g single lease Component,

As a Lessee:
Comipany recognizes a right-of-yse assetand a lease liability at the Jease Commencement date,

Right-ofiyse oot (ROU):

The right-ofyse asset js initially Mmeasured at cost. Cost comprises of the initial amaunt of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease Payments made at or before the commencement date, any initig]
direct costs incurred by the lessee, an estimate of costs 1o dismantle and remove the underlying
&5l o1 10 restore the underlying gz.¢t or the site on which it is located Jess any lease incentives
Teeeived,

After the Gommencement date, g lessee shall measure the right-ofiyse asset applying cost mode],
which is Cost Jess any accumulated depreciation angd any accumulated impairment losses and also
adjusted for certain Femeasurements of the lease liability.

Right-of-use auuct is depreciated using straight-line method from the Colimencement date to the
end of the lezse term, If the lease transfers the ownership of the underlying zs<et 1o the company at
the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use assct reflects company will exercise the
putchiase option, ROU will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying assel, which is
determined hased on the same basjs as Property, plant and equipment,

Lease liability:

Lease liability is initially measured at the present vaiue of lease payments tht are not paid at the
commencement date, Discounting is dane using the implicjt interest rate in the lease, if that raie
cammot be readily delermined, thep lsing company * s incremental borrowing rate, Incrementa)
borrowing rate is determined based on entity’s borrowing rate adjusted for termg of the lease and
type of the asuet Je- sed,

Lease payments included in the Measurement of the lease liability comprizes of fixed paymients
(including in substance fixed Payments), variable Jease payments that depends on an index or a
raie, initially measired using the index or Tale at the commencement date, amount expected to be
payable under a residual valye Buarantee, the exercise price under a purchase option that the
company is reascmably certain 1o excreise, lease Payments in an optional
Cotipany s reasanably certain to eXEICise an extension option, and penalties
ofa lease unjess the company js Teasonably certain not to terininate early.

FRNO.
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Lease liability is Measured at amortised Cast using the effeciive interest method, Lease liability is

» & chiange in jts assessment of whether it wi]
E\CICise g purchase, extensian or termination option of arevised In-substance fixed lease payment,
a change in the dmounts expected to pe Payable under g residual valye Budrantee and g change in
future leae Payments arising froy change in an index or rate.

When the Jesse liability is re-measured furresponding adjustment s made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-yse asset, If the carTying amount of the right-of-use 7040t has been reduced to zerg it
will be recorded in Statement of profjt and loss,

Right-ofiuse 54 is presented g & separale calegory under « Non-current assels” and Jease

liabilities are Presented under “Financia) liabilities™ iy the balance sheet,

Company has elecied nat 1o recognise right-ofiyse assets and Jesse liabilities for short term Jezses,
The lease bayments associated Wwith these Jeases are recognised as an Expense on a Straight-line
basis over the lease term,

Lessor

At the Conmmencement or modification of a tontract, that contajns 5 lease component, company
allocaies the conisideration in the Gontract, to each lease tomponent, on the basis of itg relative
standalone prices,

At the inceptian of the lease, jt is determined whether it s 5 finance lease or an operaling lease, If
the lease transfers substantially )] of the risks and rewards incidenta] o ownership of the
undcrlying asset, then it is financial lease, otherwise it ig 4n operating lease,

contract is allagateq using the principles of IND AS 115, The Company tests for the impairment
losses at the Year end. Payment received under Operating lease s rec vghised as income on strajght
line basis, over the lease term,

The accounting policies applicable to the Conpany as a lessor, in the Cuomparative period, were not
different from IND AS 1]6.

n) Non- Current assets held for sale

Non-Curren( g- *ls are classified ag held for sale jf their carrying amount wij] be recovere

principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use ang sale is considered
highly probahle, They are Measured at lower of their (a,) carrying amount and (b.) Fair Value less
“ostto sell. Non-cyrrent a%sels are not depreciated oramartised when they are classified as held for

sale,
9) Provisions and contingent liahilitjes

Provisions are recognised when the Company has 4 present legal or constructive obligatiog asa
result of past Events, it is probuble that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amaunt can he reliably estimated, Provisions are measured at the present value
of management’ s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting perind, The discount rate ysed to determine the Present value is a pregay rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the Provision due to the Passage of time {s recognised as interest exXpenses,
Contingent lizbilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligation
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence OF non-occuirence of gne Or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of Cempany or where any present obligatin

Measured in terms of future outflaw of resources or where a reliahle estimg

Cannot be made.




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2024

Rs. In Lacs
T Note As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars No 2024 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
() Property. plant and equipments 2 4.71 0.91
(b) Financial a.wis
i Investments 3 103.88 443 39
ii. Loans 4 29.88
(¢) Deferred tax assals (Net) 13 3.79 11.92
(d) Other non-current asscts 5 2.40 1.08
Total Non-Current Assets 114.78 487.18
Current Assets
(a) Financial a<eis
i, [nvestments 3 17.38
ii. Trade receivables 6 24.45 1.98
iii. Cash and cash equivalenis 7 21.07 593
iv. Bank balances other than (ii) above 7 130.00 87.46
v. Loans 4 1033.73 320.17
(¢) Other current assets 8 11.98 7.54
Total Current Assets 1221.23 440.45
Non-Curient Assets Cla--ified as Held for Sale 9 158 1.58
Total Assets 1337.59 929.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 10 301.31 301.31
(b) Other equity 11 947.81 559.64
Total Equity 124912 860.95
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(b) Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
i. Trade payables 12
(a) Total ouistanding ducs of micio and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises 7.12 2.34
(b) Other current liahilities 13 14.18 51.27
(¢) Current year tax (Net) 14 67.16 14 .66
Total Current Liabilities 88.47 68.26
Total Liabilities 88.47 68.26
| Total Equity and Liabilities 1337.59 929.21
Significant ac counting polices and notes forming part of Financial
Statement 1to38

As per our report of even dale
For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm RE:&WOH No. 123652w

Partner
Membership No.180506
UDIN : 24180506 BKHAF L9580

Place : Ahmedahad
Date : 29th May, 2024

adip Sandhir
Managing Director &
CFO

DIN : 06946411

Jaini Jain
Company Secretary
Place : Ahmedabad
Date :29th May, 2024



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Losg for the year ended 3]t March, 2024

Rs. In Lagg
Note 2023-2024 2022-2023
No Amount Rs, Amount Rs,
306.65
41.03

Income from Operation
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
- |Total Income

347.68

[ | Expenses:

—_—— S,
Employee benefit expense
Financial costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Total Expenses

Profit before tax (I - [v)
Tax expense:

(1) Current tay

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Slmm.f{}?xcezs) Provision of Tax of earljer years
Net Tax Expense / (Benefit)

Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing business (XI-X11)

Piuﬁl/{i'tl:\ﬁ) from discontinued Operations

Tax expenses of discontinued Operations

Profiv(ioss) from Discontinyeq Operations (after tax)(IX-X)
Proﬁtf’(lnss) for the period (VITI+x1)

-E!_
(51.77)
4.76

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that wij) not be reclassified to profit or loss
(&) Equity Instruments designated through other comprehensive

INCome

(b) Inconie Tax on above
Other comprehensive income for the Year, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XII+XIH)

Earning per equity share
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

As per our eport of even date

For,B. T, VORA & Co. For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. ]236%;?‘4 5
: é

v | B Ahmedabag Y\ Pradip Sandhir Mayur Parikh
«g\ FRNO, é’?j Managing Director &

C A SHETH %\tﬂ,{s CFO Director
Partner Q) ,_\ng\/ DIN : 06946411 DIN : 00005646
Membership No.180506 T '
UDIN : 24180306BK HA FLosgg 4}%
Jaini Jain
Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29t May, 2024 Date : 29th May, 2024
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INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CASH FLOw STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCH, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxation and extraordinary items
Adjustment for :-
Deprecialion and Amortization
Interest Expense
Advarces Writlen off

153.42

0.16
1.58

0.00
Short Term Capital Gain (93.03)
Bividend Income on Equity Shares (0.23)

Accrued Interest on FDR

Interest Incame

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Change in working Capital :

Adjustment for :-

Den:.re.asef’(increase) in Trade receivables

147.71

(22.47)

De-:..ﬂ;—ase.ﬁ'(increa.se) in Other Non-current Assetls (1.32)
Decrea sefincrease) in Other current Assels (4.44)
(Decrease) fincrease in Trade payables 4.79 (0.34)
(Decrease) fincrease in Other current liabilities (37.08) 40.34

Cash Generated from Operations 87.18 69.31
Direct tax Paid (net of refund) 42.87 (29.74
Cash Flow before extraordinary items

Amount in Lakhs

44,32
Extraordinary Items/Prior Period ltems 0.00
Net cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities

44.32 39.57

B. NET CASH FLOwW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of Non-current investments 692.19 379.50
Purchase of Non-current investments 0.00 (291.87)
(Increase)/Decreass in Current - Financial loans/advances (713.56) (91.62)
Dividend Income on Equity shares 0.08 0.23
Purchase of Fixed Assels (4.43) (1.07)
Interest income 40.60 22.92
Net Cash from/{used in) Investment Activities 14.88 18.09

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Cost Expense

(1.58)
Net Cash from/ (used in) Financial activities

(1.58)

NET INCREASE /(-) DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT] 57.68 56,08

OPENING BALANCE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 93.39 37.31

CLOSING BALANCE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 151.07 93.39
Note:

1 The above stalements of the cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect methods" set out in Ind-As 7
‘Statement of Cash Flow'

2 Previous year figures have been regrouped or recast wherever, considered necessary
3 Component of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balarices with bank - In Current accounts

Other Bank Balances - FDR maturity less than three months
As per our report of even date attached.

For,B. T. VORA & co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regisjration No. 123652w _————_
9 K\[ OR4 PN

N ¥
B\
e {s,: Ahmedahbad 35 )

Mﬁ;

radip Sandhir

{21 FRNO. / P
Partner ‘ ._%o 12_.1,‘,?5%‘] g’; Managing Director & Director
_ ?\ & CFO
Membership No.180508 &P ATEoY DIN : 06946411
UDIN : 241805068KHAFL9580 ~— 5
9
Jaini Jain
Company Secreta
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2024 Date : 29¢h May, 2024
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2023

(a) Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the reporting

period

Changes in Equity Share capital during the

year

Balance at the eng of the re porting perjod

(b) Other Equity

Balance at 15t A ril, 2022
— r N = . N

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Reversal of DTA on above reclassification

Total Comprehensive [ncome for the year

Reclassification of loss on Equity Instruments classifie
OCI to Retained €arning on event of actual sales

Balance at 315t March, 2023

J 175.97

Rs. In La
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Amount Rs, Number Amount Rs,
301.31 30,13,100 301.31
301.31 30,13,100 301.31

Reserve for equity
instruments
through OCJ

Retained
Earning

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Reversal of DTA on above reclassification

Balance at 315t March, 2024
As per our report of even date

For,B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

,{ \rO!'x:;f';:;\
| AR
*.-f ;"J\\hf_r?l'-.";f-;p"fr: :':;': I.I
6}@ el rrwo )]
\B\ 12w /5
C. A. SHETH R
Partner ~SDACCOS

Membership No.180506
UDIN : 24180506BKHAFL9580

Place : Ahmedabag
Date :29¢h May, 2024

Reclassification of loss on Equity Instruments classifi
OCI to Retained €arning on event of actual sales

ied through

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

305.54

(561.76)

46.88
(209.34)

radip Sandhijr Mayur Parikh
Managing Director & CFO Director
DIN : 06946411 DIN : 00005646

Place ; Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2024



Mezg9ez)
ON'Y4

8G°L 16°0 910 621 910 61°L 201 8¢ 2071 2£'¢ RAICOR s
- 520 €00 €00 - 820 82°0 Sjuswidinbg a1y
- 990 €10 €10 - 6270 610 STesaydiag 29 siemnduion
S128SY da 10
£5°0 - - - - - - €90 - €50 Sjuswdinbg 201550y
S0°L - 2 6.1 2L - ¥8'2 - v8'Z Buiping soy30
2IVS 40] p1ayf sv pax 1SSD]3
MOU "ISH 24721 1iof Pa411a.1 S1ass
HRwdmby pue el "1dorg
ETIBN-1€ | ez-repgTe 1€k oy Bump | awok {1dv-10 | ez-aepy-¢ 1894 agak Te-ady-pg
Jusunsnlpy | arp Surinp 2y} SuLinp ay) Surinp ]
uo sy [e10j, | uo SV 18101, | uo sy [ero], /uononpaq PopIAGy uo sy [e10], (uo SV [Bjo |, wonanpag womppy uo sy [ejo .

pun,j uonemnaida(y

N0 sso.ar)
€T0T "Yoae s ¢ e Sy

S B0,

SINIXI] 29 aumyiuan,

siuawdinbg Ehliife}

S[eIRydLiag sRInduion

SIaSSY aati0)

ETIBN-I ¢

PT-IBN-[ ¢ pT-IeN-| ¢

4834 ay) Suranp deak £z-1dy-19 L TS RIETY
Juaunsnlpy | a1 surinp ) 23 Surinp oY} Surinp
U0 Sy [ejo] |uwo sy IBJOL [uo sy jejo /Hoganpaq PopIAcay Uo sy g0y, | uo sy 1810, wogonpag —

Punyj uonenaadsg

MI0[g ssoan)

S up sy

PT0T ‘Ydae 35T¢ JE se SHIRWAlE)S [enUUL oy J0 3aed Sunuioy $9JON
PO sad1Ad0g [eUeuy QAT)IEB.II) U



Interactive Financial Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2024

Rs. In Lacs

As at 315t March, 2024 | Asat31stMarch, 2023 |
Non-Current Investment
_UA-Lurrent Investment

(a) Investments designated through OCI
Invesimient in Equily Instrument - Quonted

103 88 44339

m

As at 31st March, 2024 m
No. of Shares No. of Shares m
8100 |  45000] 4p63 ]
1,28,000
4,000

128000] 1014 |
2,13,880 | 44339 |
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Details of Non Curreny [nvesiment
Invesimenis designaied through OC|

Quoted

Ash.‘u wri Gold Omaments Ltd
| 2 [Gala Global Products Lo
[ﬂl‘ll"\';ii\ﬁ Thinklabs Lid

| 4 [Kids Medical Sysioms Lid.
R:.-.h.ma Infiastruciure Indosirics l.td
Raw Fdge Indusirial Soelutions [id,

S_huhh-un Polyspin Lid

3

103.88

7,28,280

Current Investment
~Urrent Investment
(a) Investments designated through OCI

Invesiment in Equity Instrument - Quoied

Invesiments designaied through OCI As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
4000] 1738 |

Rs. In Lacs

we Indusiries | 1d

Non-current
a | oans o Other
- Se. uicd, f—“l‘liilj(jLTd gl'uﬁd
= Unsccured, considered good
- Doubtful

Less - Advances writien off (Impairment Lass)

Curient
a loans 1o Othus

- Scowred, considered good

- Unsceured, considered good
- Doubiful

L.ess © Allowaiice for bad and doubtfy] loans

1033.73

Naote :
Disclosures as per schedule V of SEB] (LODR) Regulation, 2015:

1 Louns & Advanes to others under curreny includes Rs. 15.78 lacs as at 31st Marel 2024 (Previous Year as al 31st March 2023 - Rs. 72.56 lacs) due from
a company/Individual in which one ofdireciur/KMP is director / Mcnmiber / Relative of KMP.

- Nune of the loances have made invesinient in share of the Company.

Other non-current assets
Deposits

|

Balance with Goveriinent Authorities




Interactive Financial Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements ag a¢ 31st March, 2024

Trade Receivable
P —
Sccured ang considercd gond

Unsoeaied and o wsidered pood

I Trade Recejvahies Others Includes Rs. Nil/-as ar 314 March 2004 (Previous Yeur as at 31st March 2023 Rs. Nil/-) due

m Associates party,
i Refer Neie No - 31 for information

ahout Credit Risk and Marker Risk of Trade Receivables,

Rs. In Laes

Cash on hand
Cash Equivalenis
Balances with banks

=M Current aco nts

b. Other Bank Balancey
U1 R e S JCES ;
ICICT Bank Fixed Deposit (Maturity on dermarnd)

Other current Assets

Acuried Interes on Term Deposit
Advance given 1o creditors
Pn.yn,ﬁ.’l FN}"S

Balance with Gawy, Authorilies

Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Orfice Building - Gres Block
Furniiure & Fixturcs - Groes Biock

053
lLese Accumulaied de rCuiaiion )

1.78 1.79
During the Fy 2022-23 Office Building and Furniiure & Fixiures are retired from aciive use fFom 01-04-2022 ang therefure, cls

s classified as Non-Current
Assctheld for sale and valued al carrying value which js N accordance with [ND AS -105.

assumed to be less than fair value as

Ahmizdzhag
FRNO.

b ol 1
3852
B\, 12365214 g
ICDA‘:CO\)\




Interactive Financial Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2024
Rs. In Lacs

10 |Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
Autharised Share capital :

80.00.000 (Previous year 80,00,000) Equity Shatcs of Rs.10/-cach 800.00 800.00

Issued. subscribed & paid up:

S0.13.100 (Previous year 30.13,100) Equity Shaics of Rs.10/-cach, fully paid up 301.31 301.31
Total 301.31 301.31

Notes:

i The Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount otiistanding as

All the euity sharcs carry eyual rights and obligation including for dividend and with respect to voting.

s al the ycar end is sel as below:

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Particular Number of | Amount Rs, Number of Amount
shares shares Rs.
Equily shascs at the beginning of the year 30,13,100 301.31 30,13,100| 301.31
Add: Equily Shaies issued during the year - - - -
Equity shaics al the end of the year 30,13,100 301.31 30,13,100| 301.31

iii

The deiails of sharcholdess halding more than 5% of the equily shares of the Company as

al ycar end is as below :

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Pradeep Sandhir

5,71,000

18.95%

5,771,000

18.95%%

Muomna Sandhir

1,51,146

5.02%

1,51,146

Anilkamar Nandkishore Mittal

Miker Financial Consulianis Pyt Lid

iv. The company is neither Holding Company nor a subsidiasy of any other c THpANY.

v Duting preceding 5 yews, neither any shaics have been allotted for consideration ather than cash, bonus shares nor any shares have been bought back.

Rs. In Lacs
Reserve for equity
11|Other Equity instruments through other Retained earnings Total
comprehensive income
Riseives and Surplus
Balances as on 1st April, 2022 222,98 263.57 486.55
Add / (Less) @ Net fair value gain on invesiments in (61.77) - (61.77)
u.[L!!i} instruments at FVTOCI
Léss ¢ Income tax on net fair value gain on invesiments 4.76 - 4.76
In cquity insirurnents at FVTQCI
Add / (Less) - Reclassificaiion of loss/(profit) on Equity - - -
shates classified thiough OCT to Retained earning on
cvent of actual sales
Add / (Less) 0 Revarsal of DTA on actual Equity : = =
mstrumcnts soid
Add : Net profit / (loss) afler tax from continuing - 120.10 120.10
oputalions
Balances as on 31st March, 2023 175.97 383.67 5,59,64,025
Add / (Less) @ Net fair value gain on investments in 335.31 - 335.31
Cyuily instrumenis al FVTOC]
l.css o Incame tax on net fair value gain on investments (29.76) - (29.78)
In ¢quily instrunients at FVTOCI
Add / (Less) © Rechussification of gain on Equity shares (561.76) 561.76 -
cluwssified through OCT 10 Retained carning on event of]
aviual sales
Add / (Less) o Revesal of DTL on actual Equily, 46.88 (25.19) 2168
instryments sold
Add . Net profit / (less) afler tax fom continuing - 60.94 60.94
Opcialions
Balances as on 31st March, 2024 (33.37) 981.18 947.81

Nature and Purpose of Reserve: -

Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income

This rescive represants the cumulative gains and losscs on the tevaluation of equity insiruments measured at fair value through othmrﬁﬂa
wsifed (0 retained eanings when those assets have been disposed off, g

income, net ol amounis roelus

Retained earnings

The same is creaied out of profits over the years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the Act.




Interactive Financial Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2024
Rs. In Lacs

12| Trade Pavable

Due To Other than Micio, Small And Medium Entcrpriscs 7.12 2.34
Total 712 2.34
’.-_\geing of sundry creditors As at 31st Mareh 2024
Less tha More than 3
Particulars ; nl 1-2 years 2-3 years S a Total
year years

Undisputed
MSME - =
Othcr * 712 7.12

Disputed

MSME

Other

Unbilled Amount
Total | 7.12 7.12

As at 31st March 2023

Le More th
Particulars Rsaiiiiy | 1-2 years 2-3 vears ore than 3 Total
year years

Undisputed
MSME 2 5
Other * 2.34 2.34

Disputed

MSMF

Other

Unbilled Amount
Total 2.34 2.34 ]

i On the hasis of the information as ailahle with the Company and intimiations received from supplices (Trade Payable and Other Payables), there are no
ducs payohle as on 31st Ma: ch, 2024 (31st March, 2023 : Nil) 1o Suppliers / Service providers covered under Micro, Small, Mediwn Enterpriscs
Develapment Act, 2006, In view of this information required to be disclosed ws. 22 of the said Act is not given.

i * Trade Payables for others includes Rs. 2.61,957/- as at 31st March 2004 (Previous Year as at 31st March 2023 Rs. 2,00,701/-) due 1o KMP for Unpaid

Remuneration & Unpaid reimbursement Capenses with KMPs

Rs. In Lacs
13 [Other current liabilities
Ouistanding Liahilities 249 235
Advarices from cusioniers 6.15 4552
Statuiory Liabilitics 555 3.40
Total 14.18 51.27
Rs. In Lacs
14 |Current vear tax (Net)
Préwvision for Income Tax 95.77 31.65
Liss
Advance Tan/TDS Revcivables (28.60) (16.99)
Total 67.16 14.66
15 Tax Expenses Rs, In Lacs
(2) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Bartieyhars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Current Income Tax 95.77 31865
ExXcoss provision of Income Tax in respect of Earlier years - 1.07
Deferred Invome Tax Liabitity / (As<ct). net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.05 (0.18)
Chasige in rocogaised deduciible 1 mporary differcices - 0.76
Deferred Tax Expense 0.05 0.60
Total Tax Expense for the year 95.81 33.32
(b) Amounts recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income
For the yvear ended Far the year ended —’
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Particulars Tax Tax (expenise)
Before tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Net of tax
benefit Beneft
335.31 (29.76) 305.54 (61.77) 4.76 (47.01)
335.31 (29.76) 305.54 (51.77) 4.76 (47.01)4|




Interactive Financial Services Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31s¢ March, 2024

For the year endeq 31st For the year ended 3lst
March, 2024 March, 2023
153.42

38.61

(¢) Reconciliation of Tax Expense

Profit Before Tay
Tax using the Coampany's dornestic ax raic

Non-Deductible Tax Expenses
Depreciation

Inicicst on Mcome Tax & TDS lase payment
Exps Dizallowed under Sceiion 37

Allowable Tax Expenses

D(.;Jr cotdling

Items subject to differential tax rate
Shart term Capital Gain - EQS

Short term Capital Gain - EQS as per IT
Loiig Term Capiial Gain on EQS as per IT

Others
Adjl.!\l‘i':'lr it for Tax of Prior Periads

Deferred Tax Liabiiity / (Assets) :-
Pi L‘.'\Ji'\i‘fu!S
Difference in carrying value of PPE

(d) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

Net Balance as at Ilst
Deferred
Tax Liability

March, 2024
Deferred Tax Net
Deferred
Tax
Liability /

Recognised /
Reversal
Retained
Earning

Net Balance [st
April, 2023

Recognised Recognised in
Profit or
Loss

Deferied Tax {.»\<ict}/Lial)ility
Property, Plant and Equipmient

In R T ITE
Net Deferred Tax (f\“ﬂ)ﬂ"Liﬂhilit‘v

Recaognised /
Reversal
Retained

Larn

Net Balance 1st
April, 2022

Recognised
Profit or Lass

Deferred
Tax Lia bility

Deferred Tax (.:\-:aet)/l.iability
Propeny. Plant and Equipmient

Investmcnis

(11.95)

PI’()M'.\;III‘I
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Statement of Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

Rs. In Lacs
Note Particul 2023-2024 2022-2023
No aritculars Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
16 |Revenue from Operations
Financial Consultancy Services (net) 306.65 155.77
Total 306.65 155.77
Revenue from Operation based on geographical area
Particul 2023-2024 2022-2023
articulars Amount Rs. Amount Rs.
Within India 306.65 15577
Outside India - USA - -
Total 306.65 155.77

Information about major customers

During the financial year 2021-22, Company has started Business of providing Financial Consultancy
Services as Merchant Banker. For which the necessary license is already procured from SEBI. Company
does not have any major customers. For upto last financial year 2021-22 the company had a single
customer based in USA to whom all Export sales are made and a single customer based in India to whom
all Domestic sales were made. During financial year 2022-23 Software Services Business is closed and no
transaction pertaining that business is outstanding.

17 |Other Income
Interest Income 40.60 22,92
Dividend Income on Equity Shares 0.08 0.23
Short Term Capital Gain on Equity Shares (net) - 93.03
Other Income 0.35 6.52
Total 41.03 122.70
18 |Employee Benefits Expenses
Salary, Bonus & Ex Gratia 41.23 17.92
Directors Remuneration 10.50 1.75
Stipend Exps 0.94 1.60
Staff Welfare Exps 4.74 -
Total 57.41 21.26
[ 19 Finance Costs
Interest Expenses 1.51 1.56
Bank Charges 0.00 0.02
Total 1.51 1.58




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Statement of Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

. , Rs. In Lacs
Bote P 20232024 20222023
No Amount Rs, Amount Rs. ]
[ 20 ] Other Expenses
Advertisement 117 1.17
Auditors Remuneration 1.50 1.80
Directors' Sitting Fees 1.20 0.75
Electricity Expenses 0.77 0.60
Rent for Office (Refer Note No.31) 6.84 5.40
Listing Fees 3.30 3.50
Professional & Consultancy Fees Exps 44.40 69.10
Market Research Charges - 11.82
Account Writing Charges 1.20 -
Professional Charges* 1.10 1.00
Travelling Expenses 3.31 2.90
Brokerage & Commission Exps 30.60 -
Business Promotion Exps 1.04 -
Advances written off 29.88 -
Software Exps - 0.23
Domain, Mail, Web Hosting & Site Maintenance 1.19 0.46
Administrative & General Expenses 3.87 3.62
| Total 131.38 10205 |
Note :
i. Payment to Auditors : (exclusive of GST)
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
i) For Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
i) For Taxation services 0.45 0.45
iii) *For Other Services (included in Professional Charges) 0.36 0.27
Total Rs: 2.31 2.22

21 |Other Comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans & -
Equity Instruments designated through OCI 335.31 (51.77)
Total 335.31 (51.77)




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
: General Notes forming the parts of Accounts:
22 Correspunding figures for previoys year presented have been regrouped, where fevessary, to confirm to the current period’s classification,

23 Figures have heen rounded off e nicarest of rupce,
E I

24 Contingent Liahilities and Commitments

A Not provided forin the accounts

Couster Guaranice Given to Banks

Claims not a L-‘"lelcwjg_'d as debt

Capital Commitment

Esi'maied amount of cong auls Teimaining 1o be cxceniad on capital account and not provided (net of advan. ¢s) of Rs, Nil (Previous year: as

al 31st March, 2023 Rs. Nil}.

25 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard -19% Employee Benefits”:
A Defined Contribution Plan:

The company has re oghised as an expense in the profit and loss accoung in respect of defined con
Nil/- (Previous ¥eur Rs. Nil /-) adminisicred by the Government Provident fund is not payable
durimg the ycar on ac vunt of employees nat o weeeding 10 numbers,

ibution plan — Provident Fund of Rs,
by the “empany as per Provident Fund Act

B Defined benefit plan and long term eimployment benefit
General Description:
- Gratuity (Defined Benefit Plan):

The provision of gratuity payable under the Payment of Gratuity Act is pot applicahle to the ¢ ‘mpany during the year under audit,

- Leave Wages;
The leave Mages aie payoble ozl eligible employces at the raie ol daily salary/vwages for cach day of accumulated leave

the linanal yuar 1selll Therefiorg ng lability is avorued af the eiid of the financial year for leave hone
Company year o year.

and are paid du ing
fits as per praciice foliaw d by the

26 Earnings in Fareign currency

Particulars
*poris at FOB valye

27 Related party Disclosure. --

Disclosures asg required by Indjan Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ are given below.
A Key Management Personnel (KnMP

Aniount Rs. in luhhs

R: wibusscinent of Expcnises

Oan & Advane ¢s Given
Balance Outstandin
£

Loan & Advances given

Loan & Advanc LS Toeived
back

Ahmeadabad
FRNO
123652\




28 Seginent Reporting:

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments” are given below,

As per the Management Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for Putpuse of resource allacation and asscssment and the scgment
perfurinance focus on only ane major Operating division - 'Merchant Banking Division' during the current year. Since th company has only one
Seghent, there is no separate repotiahle scgment as Tequired under Ind AS [0g

Amount in R, Amount in R,
2023-2024 2022-2023

USA upio 31.03.2022 1o whom all Export sates were made and a single customer based in India to

whom all Daimesiie sales weie made upio 31.03.2022. From FY 202223 thee is no single customer or fevenue which is within indiz or oulside
India

The revenue from Operaiion based on oo taphical arcas are as helaw -
t SLUg

Within India
Quiside India - Usa

The company had a sin gle custamer based in

During the FY 202223, Sofiware busine s of the Company has beeq dis,. mtinued from 01-04-2022 and there a

i€ N0 revenye, cxpenditure, z..ots
or liahitiiies attriku

able 1o such busingss ang hence 1o additional dise losuies are required in avcordance with Schedule I17 to the Companies Act,
2013 and Indian Ad L".mii-'lg Standard - 105,

29 Particulars of Earnings Per Share:

Eaming per share com uted in accordanee with Indian Accountin Standard 33 as giyen below:
g F P 2

Nel Prafit altributable to Share Holders
Number of Equity shares/Weighted Equity Shares
Naiminal vaiue of share

The Company does not have any ouistanding dilutive Poleniial equity shares, C-"-nsx-:;m-ully the basic and dilutive €amning per share of the
Company remain the Saine
30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Leases in which the company is a Lessee
Office premises

ity has lecsing arangemienis for its Tegisicied office, Non-cancellable period for this leasing arfangements is ess thap 12 months and
the Campany elecied (o apply the recagnition exemption for shor term leases to this lease, The lease

amount is charged as rent, The Toial lease
Paymienis accounied for the yearended March 31,2004 jg Rs. 6.84 Jakhs (prcvious year Rs, 5.40 Jakhs),

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Al Accounting classification and Fair Values

The follawing iahle shows the Catrying amounis and Fajr Values of Finaneial Ax.
Value hiciaichy. It daes nat include Fair Value informaiion for Financial A
CArTYing amount is a reasonahle approximation of Fair Value,

“is and Financigl Liahilities, including their levels in the Fajr
“Is and Financial Liahili ies not measured at Fair Value if the

Fair Value Fair Value
through P&L through QCI

(Amaunt in Rs. lakhs)
Financial Assets measured at amartised

Cost :-
Non - Curient Invesments

Cureent Inve s, fis

Cr-Curent
l.ess Writien off
Curient

and cash Sudivaicnts

Financial Liabilities measured at
amartised Cost ;-

Buriow WES - Curent

3 301es - Curreng




r L Carrying Amount Fair Value
March 31, 2023 mﬁ-ﬁﬁ?ﬁ ﬂfr t':ﬂ‘;agé] Amaortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2

Financial Assets measured at amortised
vost -
Curient Invesdinenis - 44339 - 44339 443.39 -
Trade and Other Receivahlag - ] 1.98 1.98 - -
Loans :-

Nowt=curreny - - 2988 2988 - -

Curient - - 23017 32017 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 593 5.93 . -
Total Financial Assets : 44339 357.96 801.35 443.39 3
Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised Cost :-

WHIZS - Current = = % = o =

payahles - current 234 2.34 - -
Tatal Financial Liabilities - : 2.34 2.34 . —]

(1) Fair Value of financial Aceets and Liabil'ties are measured at Anrtized costis not materially different from the Amartized cost. Furthers impact of time
valig of money is ot Signilicant for the financial fnstrinser tclassified as cwrent, Accos tingly fair value has not been disclosed separaely, »

Types of inputs are as under:

Input Level 1 : (Divectly Obscrvable) which includes fuoted prices in active tarkets for identical ssets such as quoted price for an Equity Security on Security
F h.i.,‘"_;

Level 1] : (Indirectly Ohseriable) which includes prices in active niarkets for i ilar assets such as quoted price for similar 2oi0ts iy active markets,
Alusten mitipte derived fiom prices in shserved Wansaciions involviing similar businesses ete.

Ingut Level 111 : (Tinakservable) which includes management's own Bssumnptions for amiving at a fair value such as projecied cash flas
eie.

s used 1o value a busiiese

The foliwing tables show the vahuation techniques vsed in measn ing Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobseryahle inputs used

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique

Curiciocy Ructuation Bazed on jaies of Reserve Bank of India

Equity Valuation Based on en change rates lisied on NSE/BSE stock exchange
B. Financial Risk Management:-

The Cun Ly hias & sposiure to the f.“-ﬂ..wing risks ;ui-.in;; from financial instruments:

= Curiency Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Eguity Risk

Risk Management framework
The Covpiany’s Bowrd of Direciors hac sverall responsibility for the estahlishss
= market risk through a o

ent and oversight of the Company’s risk management framewwk. The Connipany
# imdependent coniral over the entire process of market risk managerent. The
ies, which are approved by Board of Direciors. The activities of this department include
alegies, and ansus g compliance with marker risk limits and palicies,

Tian

sury department, which evaluates and exerg

beasury depurtment recom mends risk management ohjectives and pidt

of cash resiuries, botiowing s

The Conipany’s Risk Masnagement palicies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set apy wopriate risk limits and controls and
te monitor risks and adherenve to Tinits, Risk Management policies an fems are reviewed repularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Cownpany’s
autivities. The Connpany, the wigh its training and man d procedures, ainis to maintain a disciplined and constructive contra] environment in

which all e plo s tnderstand their roles and o

seinent standards s

bligations,

The Audit Connmitice aversees I s compliance with the Con pany’s Risk Management Polivies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk n. s faced by the Coinpany. The Audit Comny ftee is assisted in jts oversight role by intemal audit, Tniemal
aisdit indemal 2 hath regular and ad hoe reviews of risk m: ment controls and procedures, the results of which zre reported to the Audit Counmities.

crient framewaork in refation to the ris}

i Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk of fitancial Loz 1o the Cony pany if a customer or Conterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its cantractual obligations, and arises
Proipaily from the Connpany's receivablas from Sustonmers, invest

wents i debt securities and loans.

W arees from cosh held with banks, credit vporure to clicits, foans and advances given. The s
¢ vilue of the financial zewets, The ¢ pany assesses the cradit o,

ather faciis,

i exposure to credit risk is equal to the
ity of counter parties I::'..[.'-L: Wiz account their financial position, pasl experience and

Other Financial Assets
The CIIIII;I.“!y maAintains its Cash an

and alse reviews their creditowo thine

d Cash equivalenrs and Bank depesits with banks having good Teputation, gaod past track record and high quality eredit raring
-

S3.0f an on-g.

1818,

Al toans, in the gpinion of munagermient which 278 nof recoverahle are wiltien off. The G pany may wrile off firancial 2
activity, The Company still seeke 10 1

cts that are still subject to enfircement
VET Ao unis it is legally owed in full, but which have been written off due to no ressonable expectation of full recovery,

snton Leans given as advances which aré nol recoverable and are written off inrediately.

¥ dues ot provide for Iy pair

I

long time ago : ies namely i) Advance Capleasz Pvt Ltd (struck Off) i) Advance Cons ns
Business income was realized on the lcans in the furn of interest upio 3]st
i, 2022 inicrest income of Rs hasis during past few 3ers which is closing batances of al] three parties. However, the
is not realized till date, i) Advance Caplease Pyt Lid is tempany stuck off by MCA (Rs, 2.99 lacs), ii) Advance Construction Limited is not traceshle (Rs.
Aes) ) Murgan Non Trading Comporation is alsa nat traceahle (Rs. 23 08 [ac <). Based on vur own due dilipence and legal opinion, Company has come to
w of Rs. 29 88 lucs (29 88 Jacs i, acerued Inferest) is not recoverahle, Hance, it necds to be writien off, Accordingly, company has written
anited in the conrse af husis

sy Bad advanced 2 loan i of advance ve

ed 1) Mt Lan Non Trading Carp

e

Hone with accived inierest as acharge to Profit and Tass Ac, wint




iii

Trade Receivables
The Covnpiany's g,
deflr risk of the i

iie 1o credit nsk is inflaenced malsty by the individual characieristics of each custumer, The demographics of the customer, including the

y oy £raj B 4
atry ha dence on credit risk assecament, Credit risk is man ged theough ciedit approvals, establishing credit Hinits and continuonsly
thi siviners 12 which the Conpany gonts credit tenns in the normal cowse of business,

i g the credit war

The maxisum expuosure 1o Credit Risk for Trade Re civables by geographic region was as fallows:

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Doniestic 2445 1.98
Ouiside Tndia - USA - -

Total 24.45 1.98

S wy af the Connpany’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various Customers is as follows:

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Netther Due nor i paived - 1.98

Pusi Due 1 -90 Days 0.24 -

Past Due 91 - 180 Days - -

Mot than 180 D 2421 5

Total 24.45 1.98

The Conmnpany measires the expected cradit 123 of trade reveivables and loan from indivi
Busiie iz environient in which the entity aperaes. Loss rates are based on actual credit |

cusiviners based on historical trend, indusity praciices and the
expericnce and past trends, Based on the historical data, as per

Managesient perceptions, Mere is no loss on collection of receivahle on reporting date and hience no provision considered

Liquidity Risk

Lig Jiry Risk is the risk that the Copany will encounter dific wity in meeting the ohligations associated with its Financial Liabilities that are seitled by delivering
coshoor avcther fuancial 2e52t. The Cow pany’s apyp ity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
lishitiies when they are due, under both noonal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccepable los ses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Y . E 1 2 = paiy s rej

woacti 1o managing li

Expaosure to Liquidity Risk
The fillowing are the remainis vntiactual mators

g of financial liabilities at the reporting dale, The amounts are gioss and undiscounied, and fnclude estimated
inicrest payments and exclude the ipact of netting

cements

Coniractual Cash Flows
Non-Derivative Financial Liahilities Carrying Amount Carrying Amount
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Unseonred [auns % =
Tiade 20d Other Pa, ihileg 7.12 2.34

Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk that changes in mashet prives —such as g enchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the
value of its hald; of finanuial instraments Market risk is atte blz to all market risk sensitive financial instruments im'm{ﬂng foreign cun ENCY Teceiv:
Inws ¢ and short teon debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the value of our inves
Thus, our exposure 1o market risk is a fin ng and horrowing activities and reverue generating and operaiing activities in foreign curtency. The
id excessive exposare in awr for

wenis,

ohjectivi Wiarket risk nan weient is 1o 2

EN curiency revenues and costs

a) Currency Risk

The Cowpany™s v chanpe risk ar

sigii operations, foreign curency revenues in U.S, dollars, A significant portion of the Cq inpany’s revenues is in
im eurency, while a significant portion of its costs are in Indian rupecs. As a result, if the value of the Indian rupes appreciales refalive to this foreign
sy, the Connpany's revenies measured in Fuj ay decrease. The exc ¢ Tale between the Indian rupee and U. S. Dollacs has changed suhstantially in
revent perieds and may continee to fluctuare suba ly in the future. The Managerent keeps waich on the currency tuarkels on a periadic basis to fore et

thy, the Company would use derivative financial instruments such as foreipn exchange forward contracis, to mitigaie the risk o

Vo f
this f

-

=5

e cutrency risk. Conse

s in fureign currency exchange rates in

exchange furward coniracts nor any onisis

b of its furccasted cash flows and trade receivables. As on reporting date company did not had ontsiandiy
o

g receivable in fureign currency,

b) Interest Rate Risk

literast Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash Flows of 2 financial instrument will Nucinate because of changes in market interest rates,

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

The Crunpsny hias o exposure to the risk of changes in market interest raies 35 Con pany does nat have any interest bearing debt obligations. The loans granied by
pany 1s with fived iniciest rate.

the oo

¢) Equity Risk

Equity Prive Risk is related to the chaige in market reference price of the investments in equity sscurities. The fair value of some of the Company’s inyestments in
Fair value thiowgh Other Counprehensive Income & EVTPL securities expuoses the Company 1o equity price risks. In general, these securities are not held for
tading purposcs. These investinents are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fair value of enuity securities as of March 31, 2024 waus Rs.
40077 lakhs [FY 2022-23- Rs, 460,77 lakhis]. A Sensey standard deviation of 5% [FY 2022-23 - 574] wonrld result in chai 1g¢ in equity prives of securities held as
of Maich 31, 2024 by Rs. 5.194 Jakhs [FY 202223 - Rs, 23 03¢ lakhs]




32 Capital Management

The Company’s paticy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain insestor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future developient of the
bustness Maiigesent monitors the refurn on capiial 3s well s the level of dividends to ¢

inary sharchalders,

s copial usisg 3 ratio of “adjusted net debt’ to “ad) ity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as tolal liabilities, comprising

h and cosh equivalenis. Adiusted equity comprises all components of equity.

=) . o st
PE B E A0 Puodioasd

and ohtigations under finance lease

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Tolal Inierest bearing liahilities - -
L2353 Cash and Cash equivalents 151.07 593

Adjusted Net Debt (151.07) (593)

Tuial Equity 124912 860195

- G 1249.12 R60.95
jusicd equity raiio Nul Nul

33 Non Current Asset Held for Sale
As per Ind AS - 103, An entity shall classify & non-curent 201 {or dispesal group) as held for sale if its cartying amount will be recovered prinvipally
thinwgh a sale transaction ather than through continuiag use. Further anc of conditions to cla wify is that the sale should be complete within 12 months
There aie some exception to such condition and extension is provided beyond one year to complete the sale. During previous year FY
ment has decided to sell the assct which was part of PPE carlier and clocsified the Building & Furniture located at 603, Haiekrishna

from clae fcatic
2022-33, the mar
Conplex, Paldi, Abmedabad on 01.04,2022 having carrving value of Rs. 1.58 lacs, During the ycar, management has made efforts to aclively market the
propeity and thoie is no change in plan to sale the zssct, As the property is vacant for lang duration of time, the local taxes and other regulatory
dicments are still under process: Theie is change in management during FY 2022:23, therefore, management is actively trying to resolve the is<ve at

carhiost. Managoment is alivady in talks with one of the buyer regarding the sale and is expecied to complete saon.

vy

34 Details of Loan given, Investment made and Guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Comipanies Act,

a) Loans given to related parties during the year

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Name of Company/Firm Loan given Oulstanding Loan given Qutstanding
during the year Balance during the year Balance
B\_.,:H'IC Bln‘m‘l'.EL'\-ﬂ';."\_'d s 2.67 = =
Mana Brok fng LLP - - 2500 -
Ripal Gevariya 90.00 - - -

b) Theic are ne investimenis made other than disclosed in Note 3.
¢) Theie aie no guaranices given by the company during the year.

35 Deiails of refationship with Companies struck off under Section 248 of Companics Aet, 2013 or Section 560 of the Campanies Act, 1956:

Sr Foaretn B e S " Balance as on 31st| Balanve as on 31st|  Relaiionship

N Newne of Struck off Covnpany Naturg of transaction March, 2024 March, 2023 with cosmipany
ADVANCE A \SE PRIVATE .

1 IﬁTTGiTEI\J‘ CARETARL [FRIVA Advance loan given - 2.99 Loanee

36 Other Amendments with respect to Schedule 11T
I The company docs not have any Benami proparty, where any proceeding has been initiaied or pending against the company for halding any
Bevami property.
2 The company is not declared as wilful defautier by any bank or financial Institution ar other lender.
3 Theic is no Scheine of Artungements approved by the Competent Autharity in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,
4 The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or disciused as income during the

year in the tax assessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1951 (such as, scarch or sur vey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
196
5 The company have not traded or invesied in Crypio curtency or Virtual Currency during the year,
6 The company does not have any charges or saiisfaction which is yet 1o be regisicred with ROC beyond the siatuiory period,
7 The conjrany have nat advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather person(s) or eniity(ies), including furcign entities (Iniermediaries) with
the undersiinding that the Inicrmediary shall:
Ly ditetly orindiicctly lend or invest in other persans or entitics identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behal £ of the company (Ultinaie
“ Benefiviaries) or

b) provide any guaranice, seeurity or the like to or on belallof the Uliimate Beneliciaries,
p Y & Y

8 The company have nol received any fund from any peisonis) or enfity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undersianding
(wheiher recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

_, direcily or indirecily lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
“ B¢ neliciaries) or

(b} provide any guaranice, sceurity or the like to or on behall of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

37 Approval of the Financial Statements

The Finanvial Siaicmenis of the Company has been approved in the board meeting held on 29th May, 2024




38 Ratios

No. Particulars Numerator | Denominator Basis As at As at % Variance Reason for
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 variance
Increase in ratio is
i _ A I
a) |Current Ratio Current Assets|  CUTent times 13.80 6.45 113,949y dueto
Liabilities Ieicase mn
advances given
b) |Del-Equiiy Ratio Debt Equuiy timics NA NA
: Earnings
bt Se : = . q
c) et S.,rwu.. avatlable for | Debt Seryvice Limics NA NA
C':?V\JCur:}\: Ratio ;
- Debt Service
Increase is mainly
due to Fair Value
; P Average Gain  on  Equity
& o Eguit L proiit afler 2 g0
d) E‘:'ﬂ;n wEy [N p'.U — Shaicholders' % 34.74%% 8.87% 291.79%  Investments
all (S35, .
’ * qu::ly rhrr-ugh Other|
rehensive
Incoime
¢] Invfun,uy Turiwover | Cost of‘Gr--:ds Average times NA NA NA
Raiio Sold Inveniory
Increase in days in
Trade Receivahles Aviiage o, |Teceivables is due
[ ; Net Sales .2 uys 465.10% .
) Turnover Raiio sHode Receivables iyl ko . L “lto recent increase
In turnover,
Trade Paychies Average
’ hase ) avs !
gl Turnuver Raiio Net. Purchases Payubles deys hA NA HA
; . Devrcase 1s due to
apital Workin . g
h) ?E‘ C“pr“; i Net Sales s times 027 0.42 -35.32%lloans & advances
iove o <iplla g}:vull
Incicase is mainly
due to Fair Value
Gain on  Equity
1) |Net Profit Ratio Nel [ncome Net Sales % 119.51% 46.92% 154 .69% Invesimenis
through Other|
Comprehensive
Income
Earings Total Equily o Minor decrease in
. . artmngs i .
1Ll O Hig In] IWETIES - S c L
jy (R OnCaphe [y toierosi Borrowings % 12.71% 18.26% 30,320 due 1o
: Eimployed & Taxes Defcrre moreased  cosi of]
e as sales
[T TR Incicase is due to
Come terest from ;
, FD  cicaied in
N i generaled | FDR/ Average % 3.56% 1.57% -96.44%{Sweep Ale current
Invesimenis from invested Invesied Afe in bank and
c ¥ an
funds funds in FD s
nol as mvestinent,

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 123652W

“A.8HETH
Partner
Membership No. 180506

UDIN : 24180506 BKHAFLY9530

Eamnings available for debit service represenis Pr

Ahmedabad, 29th May, 2024

Tuial Deby fepresuinis Curicil B|:r|iU\viiié5 + Non Curiciit Borrowing

Debi Service represcnis Interest on Debt + Schediled principal rej

=

s, ifany

Capital Employed represents Total Equity + Borrowings - Deferred Tax aosets,
Income genciaied from invesied funds represents Fixed depasiis Inteiest Income,

Avcrage Invesied funds in Fised deposits represents Avciage Fixed deposits.

ofit Befure Tax + Inierest on Debt + Depreciation

aging Director & CFO

DIN : 06946411

Jaini Jain
Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, 29th May, 2024

ayment of non-current horrowings + Current maiurity of lease liabilities.




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Sub Notes forming art of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Sub Note Particulars As at 315t March,| As at 31 March,
No 2024 2023
1 Long Term Loan and Advances
Other Advances
Standard Assets:

Advance Caplease Pyt [tq.
Advance Construction Lid.
Murgan Non Tranding Corporation

Less: Impairment Loss

2(Deposits

Security Deposit - Rented Office

3INON CURRENT [NVESTMENT
Quoted

Investment in Equity Instrum ents
Ashapuri Galg Ornaments Ltd

Gala Global Produets Ltd.

Innovana Thinkjahs Ltd

Kids Medical Systems Itd.

Rachana Infrastructure Indiistries [ td
Raw Edge Indusirial Solutions .1d.
Shubham Polyspin Ltd

3[CURRENT INVESTMENT
~-RENT INVESTMENT
Quoted

uote
Investment jp Equity Instruments
Rachana Infrastructure Industries Itd

4 Sundry Debtors

AMRAPALI FINCAP LTD
Dhanadeepa Consultant Pyt .tg
SHARVIL, DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
Shree Maruti Bylk Packaging Pyt [td.
Tridhya Tech Private Ltd

Kelson Faads Limited

Last Mile Enterprises Limited
Prafulchandra Vitthalbhaj Patel

Sahana Sysiems Limited

SRM Caontractors Limited

Teerth Gopicon Limited

5(CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash on hang
Balances with Scheduled Banks
HDFC Bank 114

Union Bank of Indig
ICICI BANK 002405029934

Other Bank Balances
——=L2anX Balances

Fixed Depaosit (Having Maturity Less Than Three Months)*
FD 00241310460

Fd 002413111456
Fd 002413 12057
Fd 002410073284
Fd 53041 0000127

FR.NO.
125552W




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March,| As at 31st March,
F?\}:Ote Particulars 2024 2023
6|Other Advances Given
Beeline Broking Itd 0.89 72.56
Jaini Jain Loan A/c 13.11 -
Ketan Hasmukhlal Doshi 185.76 113.45
Paojan Shah 19.70 17.92
Pooja R Shah Loan 6.56 -
Ripal Gevariya 1.78 -
Saumik Ketan Doshi 682.42 -
Shashank Pravinchandra Doshi 1.05 0.87
Suncare Traders Ltd 30.13 27.52
Synergy Cosmetics (exim) Ltd. 41.48 41.48
Thobhani Jigneshbhai 50.84 46.37
Total 1033.73 320.17
7|Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expense
Prepaid Computer 0.35
Prepaid Professional fees 6.10
Prepaid Domain Fess 0.51
Total ; 6.95 =
Balance with Government Authorities
CGST Receivable due to Cancellation of Bill 0.45 0.23
SGST Receivable due to Cancellation of Bill 0.45 0.23
GST Receivable / (Payable) - 525
TDS Excess Payment of FY 2022-23 0.04
Total 0.94 5.70
Advance to Creditors
ADIT MICROSYS PVT LLTD - 0.00
Amrish Gandhi (Citizen Salar) 0.50 -
B.T. Vara & Co, (TDS) 0.25 0.20
Gopal Hareshbhai Shah - 0.04
National Securities Depositary Limited - 0.04
RELIGARE BROKING LTD. - 0.01
Rutu Milind Sanghavi - 0.04
Kaushik Joshi & Assaciates 2.00
Niranjan Jain & Co. 0.90
Purven B Vyas 0.02
CDSL 0.02
Tatal ; 3.69 0.33
8/ Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
&.000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- cach 800,00 800.00
Total : 800.00 800.00
Issued,Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital
30,13,100 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 301.31 301.31
Total : 301.31 301.31
9|Sundry Creditors
Jaini Jain (Exps) - 0.21
Mayur Parikh (Exps)-HDFC Credit Card 1.12 1.76
Jaini Shaileshbhai Jain (Salary) 0.70 0.03
Bigshare Services Pvt. I.td. 0.15 0.02
INSIYA NALAWALA - 0.27
Paoja R Shah (Salary) 0.70 0.03
Ahmedal Pradip Sandhir (Salary) 0.80 -
FRNO Praine Sourcing Pvt Ltd - 0.01
Clickon Trip India Pvt Ltd 0.16 -




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Sub Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Sub Note Particulars As at 31st March,| As at 31st March,
No 2024 2023
Garima Communicationa 1.25 -
Kalpaben Piyushkumar Shah 0.19 -
Piyushkumar Jayantibhai Shah 0.19 -
D Hariyani & Co. 0.75
Manas Dharmesh Hariyani 0.25
Padmavati Solutions 0.186
Parulben Hariyani 0.25
Satellite Corporate Services Pt Lid 0.23
Torrent Power Limited 0.23
Total : 7.12 2.34

Ahmedabad Yy

FRNO.
1235524




INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Sub Naotes for ming part of Statenient of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on 3]st March, 2024
Sub Note 2023-2024
| Income from Operations
Software Service (Export)
Software Service {Domestic)

Total Rs -

2 Interest Income
Interest on Advances
Interest Received on Term Deposit (FDRs)
Total Rs.:

(0%}

Other Income
Sundry Balance written hack
Out of Pocket Expense (Reln‘nbmscmem)
Kasar & Vaiay
Total Rs :

4 Interest Expenses

Interest on Unsceured loan
Interest on Profesional Tax
Inteiest on TDS
Interest on GST
Interest on IT

Total Rs.:

5 Professional & Consultancy Fees Exps
C‘Gl'asu!ianc_v Services
Professional Fees
Service Charges

Totul Rs, -

6 Administrative & General Expenses
Professional Tay (Company)
Association Regisiration Fecs
Repairing & Maint. Exps.
Legal Exps,

Anniial Fees

Computer Exp

GST Exp

GST Late Fegs

Telephone Exps.

Convey ance Exps

Postage & Courier Expense
ROC Filling Fees

Late Payment and filing Expenses
Issiiers Fees

Depuository Fees

Brokerages (Religare A/c)
Other Chaiges (Religare Alc)
PF Administrative Charges
Stationery & Printing Exp
Moior Car Peiro) Exps

Gift Exps

Office Exps,

Municipal Tax Ex

Tea & Refreshment

Misc Exps

Kasar & Varay Exps.

Sundry Balance W/off

Round Off

Total Rs. -
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